Himalaya

FOOD INTERNATIONAL LTD

Annual Report
YEAR 2017-2018

HIMACHAL PRADESH | GUJARAT | U.S.A



HIMALAYA FOOD
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MAN MOHAN MALIK

Chairman & Managing Director

SANGITA MALIK

Whole time Director

SUNIL KHERA

Independent Director

ASHISH SACHDEVA

Independent Dircctor

AJAY KAUSHIK
C.F.0.

V1JAY GARG

Company Secretary

AUDITORS

M/s Satnam Associate
Chartered Accountants

BANKERS

State Bank of India, Overseas Branch,

New Delhi

Corporation Bank, Connaught Circus

Branch, New Delhi
Exim Bank, Chandigarh

Bank of Baroda, Vad Nagar, Gujarat

CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION

NUMBER (CIN)
L70102DL1992PLC047399

REGISTRAR &
SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

Beetal Financial & Computer Scrvices (P) Ltd.
Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99 Madangir,
BH-Local Shopping Complex,

Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir,

New Delhi-110 062

SHARES LISTED AT
Bombay Stock Exchange
526899 (Scrip Code)

REGISTERED OFFICE
E-5535, 2nd Floor,

Palam Extension, Sector-7,
Dwarka, New Delhi-77

Tel ; G11-45108609
www.HimalayaFoodCompany.com

HEAD OFFICE & PLANT
Village : Shubhkhera, Paonta Sahib
Distt. Sirmour (H.P.) 173 025

Tel.: 01704-223494, 8894788509
Fax: 01704-225178

GUJARAT PLANT

Survey No.: 215/A/1,

Vadnagar - Navapura - Redlaxmipura Road
Sultanpur - 384 355

Distt. Mehsana, Gujarat

Phone : 72111 93505

27th Annual Report YEAR 2017-2018




Hﬂnalayaﬁg‘ﬁ

HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Dear Himalya Family,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I welcome you all to 27th AGM of your company.

The success of our company is important for Emerging India signifying the importance of Rural
Jobs, enhancing the incomes of the Farmers & caming forex through Agro Exports.

Inspite of the hiccups & after-pains of the JV failure we stay focused and dedicated to make the
final recovery.

The results of FY 18 reflect continued efforts on sustenance and plans for quantum leap towards
exponential growth.

Himalaya is the only food company with so much diversified portfolio of products in chilled,
frozen & canned categories and has the largest production capacities in the country. The immediate
key is to first pick the low hanging fruit by boosting Mushrooms and the fulfillment of export
orders. The next challenge shall be of putting all capacities in optimal operational mode asap.

In pursuit of this target, we have requested our Banks to approve the debt resolution Plan and we
hope to conclude this in the next few weeks.

We have opened 20 franchisee stores, mainly in NCR Delhi, for sale of our products in Domestic
Market. There are hundreds of applications pending to open franchisee stores and we shall setup
more stores after rectifying teething troubles of the existing stores.

We have a large order book to be fulfilled for US Exports and much more is in pipeline to be
committed in next few months.
We have great Passion driving us through the tough times and to achieve great success we require
more Perseverance & Patience.

I reassure you that your management & executive teams have the requisitc mettle to surmount any
impediments to achieve the Goals and rcalize the "Vision 2020'.
Thanking & Requesting you for your continued trust & patience and wishing you great times
ahead!

Sincerely

For Himalya International Ltd

Man Mohan Malik

Chairman
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HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

- NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the 27th Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company wiil be held on Saturday, the 29th
Day of September 2018, at 03:00 PM at Priyanka Party Hall, Adjoining Vandana Int. School, behind Dwarka Court, {(Near Sec -10
Metro Station) New Delhi to transact the following business: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. Toconsider and adopt the Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st
March 2118 and the Reports ofthe Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. _

2. To appoint a dircctor in place of Mr. Ashish Sachdeva DIN: 03069836, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers

herseif for re-appointment.

3. Toconsiderand, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, with or without modification as an Ordinary Resolutions :
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 & 148 (3) and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the *Act”) if any, read with the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, M/s Satnam Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No. 09870C)
Dehradun Uttarakhand be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the
conclusion of this Annual General Mccting to till the conclusion of next Two (2) Annual General Meeting, who relinquish office
at the conctusion of the AGM, subject to ratification as to the said appointment at every annual geueral meeting on such
remuneration to be fixed by the Board of Dircetors on the recommendation of the Audit Commiitee plus Service Tax/GST
payable thereon and reimbursement of travelling and other incidental cxpenses, if any incurred by them in connection with the
audit.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:-

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, with or without modification as an Ordinary Resolutions :
“RESOLVED THAT the Disclosure on Non-Promoter allottee of warrant on EGM dt 12" January 2018 to M/s LRSD
Securities Private Limited detail of their ultimate beneficiaries of Lalit Dua (HUF) PAN AAAHL7279] holding 25%
Sharcs each in M/s LRSD Securities Private Limited.

(1YMr. Lalit Dua{Karta) (2} Mrs, Ritu Dua, Spouse of Karta

(3}Ms. Shreya Dua, Daughter of Karta,  (4) Ms, Dakshata Dua, Daughler of Karta.
BSE In-Principle approval under Regulation 28(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015 received on dated 19" February 2018.

i3

5. Toconsiderand, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Special Resolution:-
Regularisation of Additionat Director, Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kakkar DIN 02434426 by appointing him as Executive Director of
the Company;- : _
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, 161 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companics (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kakkar (DIN 02434426) who was
appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f from 28" October 2017 by the Board of Directors of the Company and whe holds
office as such up to the date of this Annual General Meeting be and is hereby appointed as a Executive Director of the
Company for the period of § years.”

6. Toconsider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Special Resolution:-
Regularisation of Additional Director. Mr. Akhil Gupta DIN 07971889 by appointing him as Executive Director of the
Company:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, 161 and other applicable pravisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Akhil Gupia (DIN 07971889) who was appointed
as an Additional Director w.e.f from 28" October 2017 by the Board of Directors of the Company and who holds office as
such up to the datc of this Annual General Meeting be and is hereby appointed as a Executive Director of the Company for the

period of 5 years.”

e ———————— .
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7. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Special
Resolution:-

Regularisation of Additional Director, Mr. Surendra Kumar Kaushik (DIN: 05286196), by appointing him as
Independent Director ¢f the Company:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Scctions 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule 1V and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companics Act, 2013 (“the Act™) and the Companics (Appointment and Qualification of Dircctors)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory moditication(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in foree), and pursuant to
the applicable provisions of Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, including any modification or amendment thereof, Mr. Surendra Kumar Kaushik (DIN: 05286196),
who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with cffeet from 22nd January, 2018 under Section 161 of the
Act, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Dircctor of the Company to hold office for a term upto five years.™

By order of the Board of Directors
Himalaya Food International Limited

Sd/-
Place: Paonta Sahib Vijay Garg
Date: 30.08.2018 (Company Secretary)

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE ON POLL ON HIS / HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. Pursuant to Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a Proxy on behalf of not more
than fifty members holding in aggregate, not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company. Members
holding more than ten percent of the total sharc capital of the Company may appoint a single person as Proxy, who shall
not act as a Proxy for any other Member.

2. The instrument of Proxy, in order to be cffective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly
compteted and signed, not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy Form is annexed 1o
this Report. Proxics submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by an appropriate
resolution/authority, as applicable.

3. Members/Proxies should bring the enclosed attendance slip duly filled in, for attending the meeting, along with the
Annual Report.

4. The Register of Mcmbers and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 24th September 2018 to
29” September 2018, both days inclusive.

Shareholders who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their client [D and DP ID numbers for casy
identification of attendance at the mecting. Members are requested 1o notify their email ID.

th

6. Members are requested to notify the change in their addresses and bank account details, ifany.

7. Alldocuments referred to in the accompanying notice are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company
during the office hours on all working days between 11 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. up to the datc of this Annual General
Mecting.

8. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Annual General Meeting are
requested to send duly certificd copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the
Meeting.

L —————— e
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Members are requested to note that ali correspondence relating to share transfer should be addressed 1o the Company's
Share Transfer Agents Mcmbers are requested to notify their email addresses to the company's Share Transfer Agents.
Ms. Beetal Computer & Financial Services Pvt. Ltd, Beetal House, 3" Floor,99, Madangir, BH_Local Shopping
Centre, New Delhi-110062

=

10. As part of the Green Initiative in Corporate Governance, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of
India, through its Circular Nos. 17/2011 and 18/2011, dated April 21 and 29, 2011 respectively, has allowed companies
ta send official documents to their sharcholders electronically.

11. Members are requested to

a. Note that copies of Annual Report will not be distributed at the Annual General Meeting and they will have to
bring their copies of Annual Report;

b. Quote the Folio/Client ID & DP ID Nos. in all correspondence;

c. Note that no gifts/ coupons will be distributed at the Annual General Meeting, in compliance with the

Secretarial Standard on General Meetings.

12. The Annual Report of the Company is also available on the company's website https://himalayafoodcompany.com/

13. In terms of the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules thereto, the business at
General Meetings may be transacted through clectronic voting {e-voting) and the company is providing e-voting
facility to members.

14. Kindly note that the members can opt for only one mode of voting i.c., either e-voting or excrcising the right in the
meeting .Once the vote on a resolution is cast by member; he shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

15. Members desiring to exercise their vote by e-voting are requested to carefully read the englosed instructions which
inter-alia provide the process and manner for e-voting ,login ID, generating Password and time schedule, including the
time period during which the votes may be cast, etc.

16. In order to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner and to carry out the required activities, the
Board of Directors has appointed M/s Himanshu Sharma & Associates, Company Secretaries, and New Declhi as the
scrutinizer.

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, Himlaya International Limited is offering e-voting facility to its members in respect of
businesscs to be transacted at the 27" Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on Saturday, the 29th Day of September
2018, at 03:00 PM The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) to
provide E- voting facilities. The Notice of the 27th AGM and its communication is also available at the company's website
athttps://himalayafoodcompany.com/

The Company has engaged Central Depository Services (India) Limited as the authorized agency to provide ¢-voting
facility.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(I} The voting period begins on < 26th September 2018 at 9.00 A.M. > and ends on < 28th September 2018 at 5.00
P.M.>. During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of <24th September 2018> may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shali be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

o ——— ]
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(it) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com,
(i1}  Click on Shareholders.
{iv) Now Enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: [6digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL.: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,
C. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
(v) Nextenter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. ‘
(vi)  Ifyou are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting
of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
(vil}  If you areafirsttime user follow the steps given below:-
For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
¢ Members who have not updated thetr PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8
digits of the sequence number in the PAN field.
¢ In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number
of (’s before the number after the first two characters of the name in
CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1
then enter RAOOO0OO0N0 in the PAN field.
Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as
Bank Details recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
OR Date of { » If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please
Birth (DOB) enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as
mentioned in instriction (iv).

(viii)

(ix)

{x)

{xi)
{xii)

(iii}

{(xiv)

(xv)

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT™ tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
members holding shares in demat form wili now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also
used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote,
provided that company cpts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice,

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you c¢hoose to vote,

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION™ and against the same the option “YES/NQ™ for
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option
NGO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click onthe “RESOQLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A conftrmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote. click on *OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and
accordingly modify vour vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” yvour vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote,

27th Annual Report YEAR 2017-2018 {5}
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HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

{xv1)
(xvii)

(xvii1)

(x1x)

(xx)

You canalso take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User D and the image verification
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting available for android based
mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can
download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the
instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians -
Nen-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to
www.cvotingindia.coniand register themsehves as Corporates.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be cmailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The
Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting(@ cdslindia.com and on approval ofthe
accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the
Custodian, ifany, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Incase you have any queries or issues regarding c-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs™)
and e-voing manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an cmail to
helpdesk.evotingiiedslindia.com.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to provide the requisite information as per format given
below by postor e-mailto:-

BEETAL Financial & Computer Services Pyt Ltd.

BEETAL HOUSE, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, behind LSC, New Delhi - 110062 ‘
Ph. 011-29961281-283 Fax 0011-29961284

Email: beetalrta@gmail.com. cs@himatayatoodcompany.com

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013

Item No. 4

As per BSE In-Principle approval under Regulation 28(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015 received on dated 19" February 2018 Disclosure on Non-Promoter allottee of warrant on EGM dt 12"
January 2018 to M/s LLRSD Securities Private Limited detail of their ultimate beneficiaries of Lalit Dua (HUF) PAN
AAAHL7279] holding 25% Shares cach

(1) Mr. Lalit Dua (Karta) (2) Mrs. Ritu Dua, Spouse of Karta
(3) Ms. Shreya Dua, Daughter of Karta, (4) Ms. Dakshata Dua. Daughter of Karta.

Item No. 5
1. Name SANIIV KUMAR KAKKAR
2. DIN/PAN/DOB 02434426 / AYUPK6734H/ 17-Nov-1957
3. Contact detail / E-mail i.d 11 - 609 838 2253 / himalya@erols.com
4. Address 9 DAYNA LN LAWRENCE TWP NJ 08648 US
5. Designation Executive Director
6.  Date of Joining 28-10-2017
7. Education Merchant Navy Engineer
3. Martial Status Married
{6} 27th Annual Report YEAR 2017-2018



HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATHONAL LIMITED

Work Profile: - Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kakkar has 30 year experience in markcting. He is promoter director of the
company. He looks the US Marketing of the company.

Item No. 6
1. Name AKHIL GUPTA
2. DIN/PAN/DOB 07971889 / ASEPG3313J/ 12-Mar-1984
3 Contact detail +91-7211193501
E-mail 1.d Akhil. Gupta@himalayafoodcompany.com
4. Address 13, Bhuteshwar Mandir Road, Madho Vatika Colony,
Saharanpur - 247001 UP
5. Designation Executive Director
6. Date of Joining 28-10-2017
7. Education CMA having 10 Year of Experience
8.  Martial Status Married

Work Profile Mr, Akhil Gupta having 10 year experience in field of Finance and Costing Department. He
looks the Finance and Costing Department of the company.

Item No. 7

I.  Name SURENDRA KUMAR KAUSHIK

2.  DIN/PAN/DOB 05286196 / AAFPK0250M/ 28-Jan-1947

3. Contact detail +91- 9810300630

E-mail i.d sk kaushik@hotmail.com

4. Address B 808 Surya Vihar, Kapashera Border, Gurgaon 122016 HR IN

5. Designation Non -Executive Independent Director

6.  Date of Joining 22-01-2018

7. Education Bachelor of Science in Agriculture
CAIIB — I, Indian Institute of Bankers

8.  Martial Status Married

Work Profile:- Mr. Surendra Kumar Kaushik having 30 year experience in field of Banking and Finance. Ex-
Chief Punjab National Bank HO GAD Retired on 31.01.2007.

None of the Directors except the appointment of Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kakkar, Mr. Akhil Gupta, Mr. Surendra Kumar
Kaushik is in any way concerned or interested in this resolution.

BEETAL Financial & Computer Services Pvt Lid.

BEETAL HOUSE, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, behind LSC, New Delhi - 110062
Ph, 011-29961281-283 Fax (11-29961284

Emaii: beetalrta@gmail.com, gsi@himalavafoodcompany.com

By order of the Board of Directors

Himalaya Food International Limited

Sd/-
Place: Paonta Sahib YVijay Garg
Date: 30.08.2018 {Company Secretary)

L —
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HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

o DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The Members,

We are picased to present the Twenty Seventh Annual Report of the Company together with Audited Financial Statements
and Auditor's Report for the Financial Year ended as on 317 March 2018. The Financial Highlights for the year under review
are given below

1. FINANCIAL RESULT : The Company's financial performance is given hereunder:
B o (Rs.1n Lacs)
Particulars Financial Year ended 31.03.2018 Financial Year ended 31.03.2017
Income from Qperation 11159 12129
Other Income 126 239
Profit before Finance cost, '
Depreciation and Taxes 2909 3087
Finance Cost 1793 ! ' 1936
Depreciation ' 1170 " 1138
Profit/(Loss) before tax o (54) N 13
Less: Provision for Bad Debts _ o
Less: Provision for W/o Fire claim ' 62 _ 247
Deferred Tax(Assets)/Liability 3 10
Profit/{Loss) for the year (85) (244)

Performance: During the year under review, the total income of your Company was Rs. 11159 Lacs as compared to Rs. 12129
Lacs in the previous year. The net (L.oss) of the company for the current (inancial year is of (Rs.85) Lacs as compared 1o loss of
(Rs. 244) Lacs in the previous vear. It is reduced from the previous year, Company is now recovery mode and focusing on export
business.

2. DIVIDEND: g
Due to loss incurred by the Company during the financial year, the Board has not recommended any dividend for the year
ended 31st March 201 8.

BUSINESS OPERATIONS OVERVIEW & FUTURE OUTLOOK:
Company's business activitics arc broadly divided into Growing of mushrooms (agriculture Activity), Cheese, sweets and

b

appetizer manufacturing and export. We are pursuing 1o eslablish Franchisee business spanning three modulcs as
Distribution Hubs, Exclusive Stores & Quick Service food Vans. We plan to launch all product verticals Pan India within next
2/3 years.

&

DEPOSITS:
Your Company has not accepted any Public Deposits under Chapter - V of Companies Act, 2013, during the year under
review.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND RISK MANAGEMENT:

Your company has an adequate Internal Control System and Risk Management procedure to monitor the risks and their
mitigating actions, Company has developed policies & procedures to assess the risk associated with the company and
minimization thereof and periodically informed the Board of Directors for their review to cnmsure that the executive
management controls the risk in accordance with defined policies and procedures adopted by the company.

bl

Mr. Akhil Gupta, Cost Accountant and Director of the Company is responsible for Internal Audil of the Company for the
financial year 2017-2018, He independently evaluate adequacy of internal controls and audit the transactions undertaken by
the Company. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors inter alia, reviews the adequacy and effcctiveness of internal
Contrel and monitors implementation of Internal Audit observations.

]
27th Annual Report YEAR 2017-2018 {91}
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6,

10.

A)

B)

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The Statutory Auditors of the Company arc M/s Satnam Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 009870C)
Dehradun Uttarakhand, who hold office till the conclusion of the ensuring AGM. There was no change in the statutory
auditors during the vear.

Pursuantto Section 139, of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors have recommended appointment of M/s Satnam
Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 009870C) Dehradun Uttarakhand as Statutory Auditors for holding
office from the conclusion of the ensuing AGM till the conclusion of the AGM to be held in the year 2018, their re-
appointment subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing AGM of the Company has obtained written
confirmations from M/s Satnam Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No, 009870C) Dehradun Uttarakhand
that their re-appointment, if made would be in conformity with the limits specified in the said Section.

The report given by the Auditors on the financial Statements of the company is part of the Annual Report which 1s self
explanatory and need no comments..

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: As per the provisions of Scction 204 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under,
every listed company is required to annex with its Board's Report, a Sceretarial Audit Report given by a Company Secretary
in practice.

Secretarial Audit was carried out by M/s Himanshu Sharma & Associats, Practicing Company Secretary, New Delhi, the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2017-2018. The detailed report on the Secretarial Audit is
appended as an Annexure to this Report which is self explanatory and needs no comments..

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD: There are currently three Commitice of the Board which are as follows:

a) Audit Committee
b)Nomination & Remuneration Committee
c) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

.

Details of all the Committees along with their composition, charters and mectings held during the year, arc provided in the
“Report on Corporate Governance”, a part of this Annual Report.,

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as required under Section Y2(3) and
Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is appended as an Annexure to this Report.

DIRECTORS:
Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

There are 4 Additional Directors has been appointed

1. Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kakkar, Additional Executive Director

2. Mr. Akhil Gupta Additional Exccutive Director

3. Mr. Surendra Kumar Kaushik, Additional Independent Director

4. Mr. Keshav Sharma Additional Executive Director

has appointed during the year as the Additional Directors in the Board of the Company during the year under review.

Change in Designation
None of the Directors position changed on the Board of the Company during the vear under review

Declaration by Independent Directors: The Independent director have submitted their disclosure to the Board that they
fultill all the requirements as to qualify for their appointment as an Independent Director under the provisions of Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms & conditions for the appointment of Independent Directors are given at the
website i.e. hitps://himalayafoodcompany.com/ of the Company

_—
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11.

12,

C) Formal Annual Evaluation:

The details of training and familiarization programmes and Annual Board Evaluation process for Directors have been
provided under the Corporate Governance Report. The policy on Director's appointment and remuneration including criteria
for determining gualifications, positive attnibutes, independence of Director, and also remuneration for Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees forms part of Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report

D) Board Meetings:

The Board of Directors met 7 times during the financial year 2017-2018 0n 19.05.2017,28.07.2017,02.09.2017,28.10.2017,
08.12.2017,22.01.2018, 26.02.2018 as detailed in the Corporate Governance Report.

Two Shareholder Extra Ordinary General Meeting
1. CourtConvey Sharcholder Meeting dated 28.04.2017

2. Extra-Ordinary General Meeting Dt. 12.01.2018

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The provision of rule 5 sub rule (2} & (3) of the companics (Appoiniment and Remuncration of Managerial Personnel) Rules
2014 requiring particulars of the employees in receipt of remuneration in excess of Rs. 60 Lacs per year to be disclosed in the
Reportof Board of Dircctors of the Company arc as under:

Name of employee Designation Remuneration (in Rs.)
Map Mchan Malik Chairman and Managing Director 60,60.000

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013, .

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in ling with the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of
Wamen at the workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, Redressal) Act, 201 3. [nternal Complaints Committee {{CC) has been set
up to redress the complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees {permancnt, contractual, temporary,
trainees) are covered under this policy. No compliant has been received in this regard

13. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION t86: -

14.

During the year under review the company has not accepted any loans or provided any guarantee or made any investments
under sectien 1 86.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:-

During the year under review the company has entered into the following contracts or arrangements with related party.

Related Party Disclosures

Name of Related Parties
Key Management Personnel and their relatives Mr. Man Mohan Malik
Mrs. Sangita Malik
Enterprises over which key management personnel Himalya Carbonates Pvt. Ltd.
/ shareholders and their relatives have signiticant influence Doon Valley Foods Pvt. Lid.
APJ Laboratories Ltd
Himalya Simplot Pvt Ltd.
Subsidiary Companies Himalya Green Apariments Ltd

Appetizer and Snacks Foods Ltd

L |
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Nature of transaction 2018 2017
(i) Managerial Remuneration
Mr. M.M. Malik 60 102
Mrs. Sangita Malik 19 19
(i) Loans & Advances
APJ Laboratories Ltd 568 566
Doon Valley Foods Pvt Ltd. 23 3
(itiy Investment in Shares of Subsidary Companies:
Himalya Green Apartments Ltd
{50000 shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up) 5 5
Appetizer and Snacks Foods Ltd
{50000 shares of Rs. 10} cach fully paid up) 5 3

The Board has also framed a policy on related party transactions and the same is available on Company's website

15

16.

17.

. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:
The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and
mismanagement, if any. The Policy has a systematic mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns about
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or policy. The policy is also
available on the Company's website.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO:
Information pursuant to section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to conservation of energy, technology

absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo is as under:

A- Energy conservation — The Company makes continuous efforts to explore new technologies And techniques to
make the infrastructure more energy efficient. The operations of the Company are not energy intensive. Company use
agro waste to firc boilers.

B - Technology absorption Company uses Indian technical manpower to Operate Indian and imported infrastructure Foreign
exchange earnings and out go:. '

Particulars (Accrual Basis) Amount (In Laks)
Inflow foreign Exchange 3206
Qutflow foreign Exchange NIL

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Board hereby affirms:

{aj in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

b ———————————————————————
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19.

20.

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

{d) thedirectors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; _

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial control are adequate and were operating effectively; and

{f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicabie laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Management Discussion and Analysis : A detailed chapter on “Management Discussion & Analysis” (MDA)
pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is annexed to the Annual Report and forms integral part of Directors’
Report.

Corporate Governance Report : We strive to attain high standards of corporate governance while interacting with all our
stakeholders. The Company has duly complied with revised Clause 49 - Corporate Governance Code as stipulated in
the listing agreement with Stock Exchanges. A separate section on Corporate Governance along with Certificate from
M/s. Satnam Associates., Chartered Accountants, confirming level of Compliance is annexed and forms part of the
Directors' Report.

Acknowledgement : Your Directors greatly appreciate the dedscation and commitment of employees at all levels who
have contributed towards the effective functioning of the Company. We also wish to convey gratitude to
company's Bankers, Financial Institutions, Government Authorities, Clients, Vendors, and Investors for their support
and encouragement during the year and look forward for their continued support in the future

By order of the Board of Directors
Himalaya Food International Limited

Sd/-

Place: Paonta Sahib Man Mohan Malik
Date: 31.05.2018 (Chairman & Managing Director)

DIN No. 00696077

. __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS

Industry Struciure and Developments

Company Business : The Company's primary business is manufacture of Growing of Mushroom (agricuiture Activity),
vegetables, Cheese, Yogurt, Appetizers, snacks, sweets and French fries etc

Discussions on Financial Performance With Respect to Operational Performance

During the year under review, the total income of your Company was Rs. 11159 Lacs as compared to Rs. 12129 Lacs in the
previous year. The net (Loss) of the company for the current financial year is of (Rs.85) Lacs as comparcd to loss of (Rs.
244} 1.acs in the previous year.

We are pursuing to establish Franchisee business spanning three modules as Distribution Hubs, Exclusive Stores & Quick
Service food Vans. We plan to launch all product verticals Pan India within next 2/3 years

Human Resources : During the year 2017-18 vour company's Human Resources are as under

Category Ason31.03.2018 Ason31.03.2017
|Skilled employees 293 309

Non -Skilled Emplovecs 720 811
Total ) 1015 1120

To getback on track and achicve the high growth trajectory asap your company is focusing on effective costing linked with
productions and cost cutting :-

Internal Control System and Their Adequacy: Broadly the internal controls and systems are broken up into
following arcas:
1. Financial Systems and Reporting
Management Reporting
HR Systems and Reporting
Sales Systems and Reporting
Capital Asset Systems and Reporting
6. Operational Full fillment Systems and Reporting
7. General Administrative Systems and Reporting
& Knowledge Management Systems

Lh s b 1

Forthe size of the business, most of the systems are considered adequate. Due to the severe resource crunch in the COmpany,
ithas been unable to implement its plans of automotive systems,

Risk and Concerns : The Company is operating its business in the Growth Oriented environment with innovations,
changes and varying levels of resources available to food processing industry.

Cautionary Statement ; “Management Discussion and Analysis” report contains forward looking statements, which may
be identitied by the use of the words in that direction, or connoting the same. All the statements that address expectalions or
projections about the future, including but not limited to statements about the Company's stratcgy for growth, product
development, market position, expenditure and financial results are forward looking statements.

The Company's actual results, performance or achicvements could thus differ materially from those projected in such
forward looking statements. The Company assumes no responsibility to public, to amend, maodify or revise any forward
m
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REPORT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
L. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance assumes a great deal of importance in the business life of the Company. The Company's philosophy
on corporate governance is based on the belief that timely disclosures. transparent accounting policies, and a strong and
independent Board go a long way in preserving sharcholders trust while maximizing long-term shareholders value. It has
been a constant endeavor on the part of the Company to follow good Corporate Governance by following the principles of
transparency, accountability and integrity in functioning, so as to constantly enhance value for alf stakeholders and fulfill
the social obligation entrusted upon the corporate sector

I1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(A) Composition of Board

The Present Board of Directors of our Company comprises Directors consisting of Two Executive, Two
Independent Dirgctor and four Additional Director

Sl Ne. Name Category

i Mr. Man Mohan Malik Chairman Cum Managing Director
2 Mrs. Sangita Malik Whole Time Director

3 Sh. Sunil Khera Independent Director

4 Mr. Ashish Sachdeva Independent Director

5 Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kakkar Additional Executive Dircctor

6 Mr. Akhil Gupta Addrtional Executive Director

7 Mr. Keshav Sharma Additional Executive Director

8 Mr. Surendra Kumar Kaushik | Additional Independent Dircctor

(B) Non Executive Director's Compensation and Disclosures

The Non Executive Directors of the Company are paid sitting fecs as fixed by the Board of Directors within Hmits
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. Besides sitting fee non-executive directors are not paid any remuneration.

C) Other provisions as to Board and Committee The details of the other directorship of the Board and their
attendance at the Board meetings held during the year, 1.e. between April 01, 2017 to March 31, 2018 is given in the
following table:

Board No. of
Meeting No. of committee
al‘rtoendinie Attendan | Director ship| position held
during ceat last | in other chaiman/memb
Name Category year AGM | companies* er **

Mr. Man Mohan Malik Promoter - Executive Director 7 Yes Nil 3

Mrs.Sangita Malik Promoter -Fxecutive Director 7 Yes Nil 3

Mr, Sunit Kumar Khera | Independent Director 7 Yes Nil 3

Mr. Ashish Sachdeva Independent Director 7 Yes Nil 3

* Exclusive of the Directorship in Private Limited, Companies, Non-Corporate Institutions, foreign Companies and
Section 25 Companies.

L S ——————————————.—— . e
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** Includes only chairmanship/membership of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Shareholders /

Investors Grievance Committee. The Board periodically reviews Compliance reports of all Jaws applicable to the

Company and has put in place procedure to review steps taken by the Company to rectify the instances of non-

compliances, if any.

(D) Number of Board Meetings held and dates: During the financial year 2017-2018 the Board of Directors met 7
times. The dates of the meetings arc 19.05.2017, 28.07.2017, 02.09.2017, 28.10.2017, 08.12.2017, 22.01.2018,
26.02.2018.

(E) Information supplied to the Board: The Board has complete access to all information with the Company. The
information is provided to the Board and the agenda papers for the meetings are circulated in advance of each meeting,
The information supplied to the Board includes:

. Business/Operating Plans, Quarterly, Half yearly and ycarly results of the Company, Minutes of the
Meectings of audit Committees and other Committees of the Board.

. Fixation of date of EGM and Annual General Meetings.

. Growth of expansion plans.

The Board periodically reviews compliance of all laws applicable to the Company as well as steps taken by the
Company to rectify instances of non-compliances if any

(F) Code of conduct: In terms of the new provisions of clause 49 of the listing agreement and contemporary practices of
good corporate governance a code of conduct for all the Board members and senior management personnel has becn
approved by the Board of Dircctors vide their meeting held on 017 April 2014 and the same has been posted on the
web-site of the Company. All the Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with
the code of conduct..

II. AUDIT COMMITTEE; ’

(A) Qualified & Independent Audit Committee:
Mr. Man Mohan Malik Chairman Cum Managing Director of the committee and Mrs. Sangita Malik, Mr. Sunil Khera
and Mr. Ashish Sachdeva is the member of the committee. The term of reference covers all aspect stipulated by the
SEBI guidcline as specified in clause 49 of the listing agreement with Stock Exchange.

(B) The composition of the audit Committee consisting of lollowing independent and excutive members:
Chairman: Mr. Man Mohan Malik Chairman cum Managing Director
Member : Mrs. Sangita Malik, Mr. Sunil Khera, and Mr. Ashish Sachdeva

(C) Meetings of Audit Committee : During the year 6 meetings were held and the Composition of the Audit Committee
and number of meetings attended by the members are given below:

S1. No Name of Member(s) of Audit Committee Category No. of Mectings
_ _ _ Held Attended

1. Mr. Man Mohan Malik ¢ Chairman 5 5

2. Mr. Sunil Khera Member 5 5

3. Mrs. Sangita Malik Member 5 3

4, Mr. Ashish Sachdeva Member 5 5

n) Powers of the Audit Committee : The Audit Committce has powers including:

1) To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

2) To seek information from any employee

3) To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

4) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.
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(E) Role of Audit Committee:

- Qwersight of the company's financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information to ensurc that
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

- Recommendation to the Board of Directors, the appeintment, re-appointment and if required, the replacement or
removal of the statutory auditor and fixation of audit fees.

- Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

- Reviewing with the management, the annual [inancial statcments before submissions to board for approval, with
particular reference 1o -Matters required to be included in the Directors Responsibility Statement to be included in
the Board's report in terms of Clause (2ZAA) of section 217 of the Companics Act, 1956,

- Changes. if any. in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

- Major accounting cntrics involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management. -Significant
adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. -Compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to financial statements -Disclosure of related party transactions.

- Qualifications in draft audit report.

- Reviewing with management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval. -
Reviewing with management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of internal control
systems.

- Reviewing the adecquacy of internal audit function, 1f any including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and scniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of the internal
audit.

- Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon.

- Discussion with the statutory auditors before the andit commences, of the scope and nature of audit and as well as
have post audtt discussion to ascertain any area of concern. )

- To look into the reasens for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors. debenture holders. sharcholders,
{in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

Review of information by the Audit Committee
The audit committee review the reports of the internal Auditors, meets Statutory and internal Auditors as and when
required & discuss their {indings, observations. suggcestions, internal control system, scope of audit and other
related matters.

(A) Related Party Transaction

i. Statements containing transactions with related party has been submitted periodically before the Audit Committee.

ii. Therc are no materially significant related party transactions with thc Company's promoters, Directors, the
management, the relatives, which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Suitable
disclosures as required by Accounting Standard (AS - 18) on transaction with related parties have been shown m note
no. 27.3 of schedule S in notes on accounts of the Annual Accounts for the year.

(B) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment
During the year, there has been no change in the accounting treatment of Accounting Standard applicable to the
Company.

C) Risk Managementi : In tcrms of new provision of Clause 49 & contemporary practices of good corporate governance,
Company has developed the policies & procedurcs to asscss the risk associated with the Company and minimization
thereof and periodically informed the Board of Directors for their review to cnsure that the executive management,
controls the risk in accordance with the detfined policies and procedures adopted by the Company.

. __________________________________________________________________________________________ ]
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IV Remuneration Commitfee/ Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board of the Company has decided that the committee will also be known with the name Nomination and
Remuneration Commitice as required under Companies Act, 2013. The Committee recommends remunerations,
promotions, increments and considers the appointment of Exccutives Directors as and when required:

At present the Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises of the following members who are Executive and
Independent Directors of the Company:

Mrs, Sangita Malik, Whole Time Director Chalrman

Mzr. Sunit Khera, Member

Mr. Ashish Sachdeva Member

Mr. Man Mohan Malik, Member

During the year there arc one such Remuncration Committec Meeting of the Company has been held by the Company
on22.01.2018.

bl ol e

Non-Executive Directors

a. The Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fee only for attending Board/Committee meetings. No sitting Fee
paid for attending Board/Committee meeting.

b. There has been no pecuniary relationships or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the Company during
the year.

¢. The Company has not paid any sitting fee to Non Executive Directors which is within the limits as prescribed under the
Companies Act 2013, No other payments were madc to such directors.

Number of Shares held by Non-Executive Director 40,000/-

V Shareholders'/ Investors' Grievance Committee /Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

The Board has decided that Shareholders'/ Investors' Gricvance Commitice of the Company will also be known as
Stakeholder Relationship Commiittee as required under the Companies Act, 2013. The Board had delegated the power to
consider and resolve grievance of security holders of the company to Sharcholders’ Investors' Grievance Committee
/Stakcholders Relationship committee.

The Shareholders"/ Investors' Grievance Committee/ Stakeholders Relationship committee presently comprises of three
Directors viz. Mr. Sunil Khera, Chairman, Mr. Ashish Sachdcva, Mr. Man Mohan Malik and Mrs. Sangita Malik.

The Company received Nil complaint from tnvestor during the financial year 2016-2017, which were promptly and
satisfactorily resolved. During the year there is no share holder committee meetings.

VI. Managing Director/CEO certification

The Managing Dircctor (CEO) have certified to the Board of Dircctors of the Company that:

(a} They have reviewed financial statcment and cash flow statement for the year ended 31¥ March 2018 and to the best of

their knowledge and belief:

(i) These statements do not contain any material untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain that might be
misleading,

(if) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b} There are, to best of their knowledge and betief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company's code of conduct.

© They accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that they have
cvaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and they have
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficicncies in the design or operation of such internal control, if any of
which they are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencics.
T R ———
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{d)They have indicated to the Auditors and Audit Committee:
(i) significant changes ininternal control over financial reporting during the yedr

{i1) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that same has been disclosed in the notes to financial
statements. and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any of the
management or an cmployvee having a significant role in the Company's intemnal control system over financial
reporting,

VIL REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE The quarterly compliance repori has been submitted to the stock
exchanges where the companics' equity shares are listed in the requisite format and duly signed by the compliance
officer and company secretary.

() General Body Meetings: Details of Location, Date and Time of Annual General Meetings held during last three
years are given below:

Particulars | Time Dated on which held Venue

EGM dt. 3.00PM at Company Head Office Village Shubhkhera, Paonta Sahib,

12.01.2018 Himachal Pradesh - 173 025

26 th AGM | 3:00 PM Priyanka Party Hall, Adjoining Vandana International School, Behind Dwarka
Court, Near Sector-10, Metro Station, New Delhi-110073

25 th AGM | 4.00 PM 14 September 2016Govindam Banquet Hall, Data Ram Marg Near Flyover
Sector-7, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075

24 th AGM | 330 PM 30 September 2015 Surya Banquet Party Hall, Sector-7,
Near Ramphal Chowk, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075

At the ensuing Annual General Mecting there 1s no special Resolution proposed to be passed through the postal ballot.-

(ii) Means of Communications

-Quarterly/Yearly results are published in prominent newspapers.

- Company issues press releases from time to time.

- [nformation of the Company are available on website of the company: www.HimalayaFoodCompany.com A detailed
Management Discussion and Analysis as per requirement of Clause 49 of the Listing agrecment is forming part of Annual
report.

(iii) General shareholder information Annual

Annual General Meeting

Day & Date: 251h Sepiember, 2018 Time: 03:00 P.M.

Venuc: Privanka Party Hall, Adjoining Vandana Int. School, behind Dwarka Court, {Near Sec -10 Metro Station)

New Delhi

1l

Date of Book Closure: From 24" day of Scptember, 2018 to 29" September, 2018 (both days inclusive} for the purpose
of Annual General Meeting.

Name of the Stock Exchanges on which the equity shares of the Company is listed: Bombay Stock Exchange
Stock Code: The Stock Exchange, Mumbai: 526899

Listing Fee: Listing fee has been paid to The Stock Exchanges upto the financial year 2017-2018 &
ISIN no allotted to the depositories namely, NSDL and CDSL is INES52B01010.

Market Price Data: Monthly high and low of the cquity shares of the Company in The Stock Exchange, Mumbai
(BSE) for the F.Y. 2017-18 arc stated herein below:

- _
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Market Price Data: Monthly high and low of the equity shares of the Company in The Stock Exchange, Mumbai (BSE) for
the F.Y. 2017-18 are stated herein below: "

HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITEL

Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)
Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)
April 2017 42.90 29.95
May 2017 38.85 29.20
June 2017 37.70 31.00
July 2017 36.45 27.85
August 2017 33.25 21.00
September 2017 25.40 20.50
October 2017 34.40 21.05
November 2017 3110 23.75
December 2017 45.30 25.50
January 2018 4425 32,05
February 2018 42.00 31.70
March 2018 40.70 34.00

Distribution Schedule of shareholding as on 31.03.2018:

Share Holding of Nomin Numberof Yo Neo. of Shares| Amountin Rs %
Value of Rs. Shareholders| To Total ‘ To Total
Up To 5000 12094 72.33 2513229 25132290.00 4.3427
5001 to 10000 1978 11.83 1727395 17273950.00 2.9848
10001 to 20000 1084 6.48 1791155 17911550.00 3.0950
20001 To30000 448 2.67 1178127 11781270.00 2.0357
30000 To 40000 191 1.14 699241 6992410.00 1.2082
40001 To 50000 233 1.39 1121079 11210790.00 1.9371
50001 To 100000 328 1.96 2581354 25813540.00 4.4604
100001 To and Above 363 2.17 46261304 462613040.00 70.9361
Total 16719 100.00 57872884 578728840.00 100.0000

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents: M/s. Beetal Computer & Financial Services Pvt. Ltd Beetal House, 3 Floor, 99,
Madangir, BH - Local Shopping Centre Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi — 110062

System of Share Transfer/ de-materialization/ re-materialization etc.:

The aforementioned RTA has its own infrastructure commensurate with the work undertaken and is manned by skilled
and trained staff.

De-materialization of shares and liquidity: Company's shares are now in Compulsory Demat category, Over 95.61% of

the shares have been dematerialized. The Equity Shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchanges.
Outstanding GDRs/ADRs, and Convertible Bonds, Conversion date and likely impact on equity: NTL

m
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Plant Locations: The Factory Premises of the company is situated at:-
1. Village Shubh Khera, Paonta Sahib, District-Sirmour, Himachal Pradesh.
2, SurveyNo.215/A/1, Vadnagar-Navapura-Redlaxmipura Road,
Sultanpura-384355 Ta-Vadnagar, Dist: Mehsana, Gujarat

Address for correspondence:
Company's Registered Office
Company Secretary

Himalaya Food International Limited

E 555, 2nd Floor, Palam Extension, Sector- 7,
Dwarka, New Delhi — 110077 Tele : 011- 45108609
E-mail; ¢st@himalavafoodcompany.com

Web-site: www.HimalayaFoodCompany.com

Head Office : Vill- Shubh Khera, Paonta Sahib, Distt. Sirmour (H.P.)
Tele - 01704-223494, Fax : 01704-225178

Declaration: This is to confirm that all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and adopted by the Board.

By order of the Board of Directors

Himalaya Food International Limited

Sd/-
Place: Paonta Sahib Vijay Garg
Date: 30.08.2018 Company Secretary

L
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AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITION OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENTS

To

E

The Members of
Himalaya Food International Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Himalaya Food International Limited for the
year endedon 31 March 2018, as stipulated in clausc 49 of the listing agreement of the said company with stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management, Qur examination was
limited to procedures and implementation thereof., adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the Corporate
Governance. [tis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company,

For Satham Associate.
Firm Registration No. 009870C
Chartered Accountant

Place; Dehradun Sd/-
Date: 31.05.2018 Satnam Singh
Membership No, 79646

m
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CFO CERTIFICATE

To,

The Board of Directors
Himalaya Food International Limited

1.  Wehave reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 3 1st March, 201 8 and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief, certify that :
o These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;
s These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and arc in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 2017-
2018 which are fraudulent, illegal or violatc of the Company's code of conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if
any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

4,  Wehave indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee that :
e There are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
o Therc are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and
o There are no instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of
the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial

reporting.
Place: Pacnia Sahib Sd/-
Date: 31.05.2018 Ajay Kaushik

Chief Financial Officer

—_ e
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
To,

The Members,

M/s HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
E - 555, 1st & 2nd Floor

Palam Extension, Sector - 7, Dwarka

New Dethi-110077

I have conducted the Secrctarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED having its registered oflice at E - 555, 2nd
Floor, Palam Extension, Scctor - 7, Dwarka, New Dethi-110077. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliance and expressing my opinion thercon

Based on my vertfication of the Company books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of scerctarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial period ended on 317 March, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board- processes and Compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
I have cxamined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by HIMALAYA
FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (“(he Company™) for the financial year ended on 31* March, 2018 according to
the provisions of:
(1} TheCompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder:;
(11} The Sccurities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA"Y and the rales made thereunder:
(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thercunder:
(1v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBTAct'}):-
(v) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings:-
(v1) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Iixchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBIT Act):-
(a} The Securilics and FExchange Board ot India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takcovers)
Regulation, 2011;-
(b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
(¢) The Sccurities and Exchange Board of [ndia {(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations,
2009:-
{d) The Sccurities and Exchange Beard of India {(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999:- Nor Applicable
(e) TheSceuritics and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securitics) Regulations, 2008:- Ner

Applicable
e e——
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(f) The Sccurities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Sharc Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companics Act and dealing with client: -
(g) The Sccuritiecs and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Sharcs) Regulations, 2009:- Not
Applicable
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998:- Not Applicable
(viiy  Otherapplicable Laws to the Company. ‘
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i} Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Bombay Stock Exchange limited.
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, Ete. mentioned above.

[ further report that the Board of Directors of the Company constituted with Executive, Non- Executive Director and
Independent Directors. AS per management representation, for Nomination and Remuneration Committee
there is composition of two Executive director and Two Independent directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.

The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted in terms of the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

As per management representation, the Company intimate their Board of Directors, who are entitied to
attend the Board Meeting over phone Call and notice of Board meeting is published on the BSE Public
Platform and intimate to BSE.

The Company has not published any Press Release for Notice of Board Meetings of the Company in the
NewspaperAdvertisement.

All decisions at Board Mcetings and Committee Meetings arc carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the
meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the casc may be.

1 further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

1 further report that during the audit period, there were two events having a major bearing on the Company's affairs
in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines ete, they are:

(1) Name Change of the Company from which in Principal Approval has becn obtained from BSE.
(i) Preferential allotment of Warrants for which in Principal Approval has been obtained from BSE.

For Himanshu Sharma & Associates
Company Secretaries

Himanshu Sharma
Date : 27.08.2018 ACS Proprietor
Place : New Delhi CP. No.:11553

—— e —— e ——— e ————
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FORM NG. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2018
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration} Rules, 2014.

. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 {CIN L70t02DL1992PLCO4730%
2 _|Registration Dake 30.01.1982
3_ |Name of he Company HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
4__{Calegory/Sub-caieqory of he Corrpany Company Limfied By Share
E - 555, 1st& 2nd Floor,
5 |Address of he Regisiered ofice & contact detalls Palam Exlension, Sector - 7,
Dwarka, New Dethi- 110077
6 (Whether lisied company YES

7 |Mame, Address & contactdetalls ofhe Registrar & Transker Agent, fany. | Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pyl Lid,
Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99,

Madangir, Behind LSC,

New Delhi - 110062

Ph. 011-29961281

E-mail: beelra@amail.com

}l. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIMTIES OF THE COMPANY

{All the business activities cantributing 10 % or mare of the total turnover of the companyshall be stated)

S Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of he Produckservicel % 1o botal brnover of he
No. company

1 IQF Appetizer (Zucchini, Fries, Batierec Mushroom, Meatess Bals, Veg Nuggets. Masala Fry) 1030

2 Canned Mushroom 1050 106%

3 IQF Sweeks (Milk Cake, Kaju Kati, Motichoor Ladoo, Mawa and efc.) 1071

ll.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SN Name and address ofthe Company CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/ Assaciate % of SharesHeld
1 Himalya Carbonales Pyt Lid U24299HP1985PTCO06551 Associake NIL
2 Doon Valley Foods Pyt Lid U15209HP1990PTCO10707 Associale NIL
3 APJ Laborairies Lid U24230HP2005PLG028646 Assotiate NIL
4 Appetizers And Snacks Foods Limied U15480DL2016PLC 306438 Subsidiary 100%
5 Himalya Green Aparments Limied U701090L2016P1 C306441 Subsidiary _ 100%
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w

(V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN ' T
{Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)
(i} Category-wise Share Holding

Cakegory of Mo. of Shares held atthe beginning of the year MNu. of Shazes held atthe end of e year % Change
Shareholders {As on D*-April-2017] [As on 21-March-2018] during the yea
Demat FPhysical Toml % of Total Share Demat Fhysical Total woof Tomt
Shares

A Fromoters
[1)Indian
a) Individualf HUF a o G 0.50% 240001 [ 242000 0.41% 0.41%,
bl Centai Gow ] 0 b 0.00% 4] ] a 0.00% 0.00%
t) Stae Govis} a 0 o 0.00%, il o 1 C0G% T.00%
d} Bodies Corp. AGHE 141 0 4668130 B.07%, 4935043 0 49304352 B.52% [.45%
&) Banks ! FI O 4 o 0.00%, i 0 o 0.00% [.08%
fj &ny other Diceclor 1744309 il 17443054 30.14% 1890403 0 18490403 32 66% 2.52%
%ﬁ%ﬁ 2211244 i 2211124 48.21%] 2407446 i 407448 41.60% 3 39%
2 Foreign 0.00%
al NRI Indwiduals - - - 0.00% - - - L.0G% 0.00%
b} Other Indivduais B B 0.00% . ’ - 0.00% D.00%|
c} Bodies Corp. 48.68.778 - 48,68,778 8.41% 48,68,774, - 4368.778 B.41% 0.00%
dl Any other - 4.00% - 0 00%, [PReEA
Sub Tetal (A) (2} 48.68,774 - ARERTT 841 486877 - 4B BRTT 841% 0.40%

TOTAL {A} 2,6%,80,022 - 2.69.80.02 48 62 % 2.50.43.24p -l 2884324 50.01%] 3.38%
B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual unds - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.0C%
ki Banks ¢ Fl - G.00% 600 - 00 0 G0%) 0.08%
o} Central Govt - o004 - B - - 0 00% 0 20%)
d) State Govlis) - 0.G0% - - 0.00%, 0 00%
] Venture Capial - D.0D% - voos" T .00y
Funds
fiy lasurance Compan - 11.00%, - L00% 1.00%
gj Flis - 24.50.000) 24,00,00% 4.15% - - - “ 0.00% -4.15%)
h} Fereign Yentre - C.00% - 0 G0%) 0.00%
Capal Funds
il Othars (specify] - D.00% - 0.00%, 0 00%
Sub-total (B){1}:- - 24,000,000 24.00.000) 4.15%) B0 - G040 0.00% 4155
2. Non-Institutions 0.00%
2} Bodies Gorp. ’ 0.00%
i1 Indian - 0.00%, - 002 G0 %
i} Dverseas - C.00% - 0.30% 5.0%%
£ indiviguals : - Dm
I| Individuai 1086278 92.03.124) 1,20,75.817 2087 % 105534 1146445 1,20,15,849 20.75%] -0.10%
shareholders heiding
nominal share capdal
upt Rs. 2 lakh
i Individua® 800663 63000 H0O,99 658 14 00% 524124 63,0001  B3.G4.2%1 14.35% 0.35%)
sharehelders holding
neminal share capisl
excess 0f Rs 2 lakh
¢1 Others {spacify) -
Non Resident Indiansd 5.74.663 213,700 785363 1 36% ERL R 205400 B08.127 1.40%, 0.07%%)
Others Carporalk 46.30,418 15,34 813 51,685,252 10 85Y% 54 4B &6 1,722,500 G6EGA.8TE ©135% 0.70%
Bodies
Others Individual f MU 13,553,507 - 13,453,507 2.34% 11,098,523 - 11,848,923 2.074% Ry
Fareign Natanals - 0.00% - - 0.00% G.00%
Clearing Members 10,441 101 G.02% 32978 - AL AaTH 0 DB DoAY
Trusts - - - D.00% - - - 0.00% D.o0%
ESOPIESOS/ESPS - - : 0 50% - - - 0.00% 0 00%
Sub-lotal (B)}{2):- | 264 68.225 30.24 637 2,654,092 862 40 224 2.63,88.997) 2540045 28529023 45 .00% 0.75%
Total Public {B) 2,54 68229 54 .24 B37 3,004,092 86 2 53.38% 2.63.89,597 2540045 2 85 22.643 49.99%] -3 30
C.Shares held by . - - 0.00%, - - - L00G% 1.00%
Custodian for GDR
‘& ADR=
iGrand Tolal (A+B+( 52448247 54 .24.637] L7872 884 00.00%  5,53,32.834 2540 945 578,72,884  1G0.00% 0ol

0 — T e
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{ii} Shareholding of Promoter

SN Shareholder's Name Shareholding at e beginning of te year Shareholding at he end of the year % change |
shareholdir
No. of Shares  { % ofiolel Sharesof| % ofShares | No.ofShares | % ofiblal | % ofShares| during he e
he company Pledged/ Shares ofhe | Pledged /
encumbered i company | encumbered

ol shares o fotal

shares
1 |Anita Kakkar 18,71,193 3.23% 3.23% 18,71,193 3.23% 323%)| - 0.0
2 JArjun Malik 21,03,100 363% 000%| 49,15,713 B.49% 0.00% 4.
3 |yoti Malik 14,87,900 257% 0.00% 14,92,700 2.58% 0.00% 0.0
4 Man Mohan Malik 16,32,842 282% 2.06% 9,54,915 1.65% 1.65% -1.1]
5 MM Malik (HUF} 2,40,000 0.41% 041% 2,40,000 0.41% 041%| 0.0
6 |Purnima Malik 23,15,300 4.00% 0.00% 23,17,300 4.00% 0.00% 0.0
7 |Ananditta Kakkar 15,820,000 273% 0.00% 15,80,000 2.73% 0.00% 0.0
8 |Sangita Malik 11,44,900 1.98% 1.98% 11,44,900 1.98% 1.98% 0.0
g |Sanjiv Kakkar 34,35,548 5.94% 0.17% 29,95,000 5.18% 0.47% -0.7¢
10 |Sidarth Kakkar 16,372,311 282% 0.00% 16,32,311 282% 0.00% 0.0(
11 |Doon Valiey Foods (p) Ltd 30,68,150 5.30% 3.79% 22,11957 | 382% 379% -1.4¢
12 {Himalya Carbonates Pvt Ltd 16,000,000 2.76% 0.60% 27,18,475 4.70% 0.00% 1.9:
13 |Himatlya international Inc. 48,68,778 B.41% 0.00% 48,68,778 8.41% 0.00% 0.0
Total 2,69,80,022 46.62% 11.23%| 2,89,43,242 50.01%; 11.23% 3.36

(iti) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Snareholding atthe beginning ofthe | Shareholding at he end of he year : % change ir
year shareholding
, during te ye:
SN Sharehol N
arehoiger’s Name No. ofShares  |% ofblal Sharesoff No.ofShares  |% ofotal Shares Change in no of Date of R f
1 the company of the company Share alec eason o

Change Change
1 {Man Mochan Malik 16,32,842 2.82% 9,54,915 1.65% 6,77,927 [08.08.2017 -1.17
. Inter Promoler
2 |5anjiv Kakkar 34,35,548 5.94% 29,95,000 5.18% 4,40,548 {10.08 2017 Shareholding -0.76

Himalya Carbonates Pvt

3 1y Y 16,00,000 276%|  27.18,475 470%|  (11,18,475) Transler 193
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{iv} Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN For each ofhe Top 10 Sharehalding atthe beginning of he year Cumulative Shareholding during he year
shareholders No. ot shares % of bolal shares No. ofshares % of iotal
shares
1 |KANCHAN TANDON
Althe beginning of e year 3.00,000 0.52% 0.00%
Changes during the year 0.00% - 0.00%
Atthe end ofthe year 0.00% 3.00,000 0.52%
2 [VIJAY VOHRA
Atthe beginning of the year 1,83,124 0.32% 0.00%
Changes during e year 0.00% {97 435) 017%
Atthe end of the year 0.00% 85,689 0.15%
3 |GIRDHARI P ROHIRA
At the beginning of the year 2,80.000 0.48% 0.00%
Changes during the year 0.00% - 0.00%
Atthe end of he year 0.00% 280,000 0.48%
4 |GURMUKH J SUKHWANI
Atthe beginning of he year 1,60,989 0.28% 0.00%
Changes during the year 0.00% - 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 0.00% 1,60,999 0.28%
5 [NITIN TANDON
Atthe beginning of he year 2.08 500 0.36% 0.00%
Changes during the year 0.00% - 0.00%
Atthe end of he year 0.00% 2,068,500 0.36%
6 GIRDHAR| PARSRAM
ROHIRA
Atthe beginning of the year 2,00,000 0.35% 0.00%
Changes during the year 0.00% - 0.00%
Atthe end of he year 0.00% 2,00.000 0.35%
7 |JAGDISH AMRITLAL SHAH
Atthe beginning of he year 1,75,725 0.30% 0.00%
Changes during the year 0.00% - 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 0.00% 1,75,725 0.30%
8 |SHER SINGH
Atte beginning of he year 1,33987 0.23% 0.00%
Changes during the year 0.00% 7,200 0.01%
Atthe end of he year 0.00% 1.41.187 0.24%
9 USHA GURUMUKH
SUKHWANI{
Atthe beginning ofthe year 1,34,800 0.23% .00%
Changes during the year 0.00% {59,718} -0.10%
Atthe end ofthe year 0.00% 75,081 0.13%
10 |ABDUL QAYOOM TANGA
Atthe beginning of the year 1,34,558 0.23% 0.00%
Changes during te year 0.00% - 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 0.00% 1,34,558 0.23%

———————————————r— e e e . . B———=Peeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e B~ T et
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{v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN [ Shareholding of each Direciors Shareholding atthe beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
and each Key Managerial
Persorinel
No. of shares % of gl shares No. of shares % ofotal
shares
1 |Man Mohan. Malik
Atthe beginning of he year 8,54.915 1.65% 1.85%
Changes during the year 0 0.00% - 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 9,54,915 1.65% 854,915 1.65%
2 {Sangita Malik
Atthe beginning ofthe year 11.,44,900 1.98% 0.00%
Changes during the year 0.00% - 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 0.00% 11.44,900 1.98%
3 |Ajay Kaushik, CFO
Atthe beginning of the year 1,000 0.00% 0.00%
Changes during the year 0.00% - 0.00%
Atthe end of the year 0.00% 1,000 0.00%
V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment,
The details of indebtedness with respect to secured or Unsecured Loans or Depasits during the financial year 2017-18 is as under

(Amt in Lakh)
2018 2017
Lang Term Borrowing 11,237 12,049
Defered Tax Liabiliies 771 ' 801
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
SN. |Pariculars of Remuneraton
Name Man Mohan Malik | Sangita Malik
Designation . CMD WTD
1 |Gross salary 60.00,000 19,00,000
{a} Salary as per provisions contained in section 1701} of the Income-tax NIL NilL
Act, 1961
fb} Value of perquisites w's 17(2) Income-tax Act 1961 NiL NIL
{c] Profits in lieu of salary under secton 17{3) Income- fax Act, 1961 NIL NIL
2 |Stock Opfon NIL NIL
3 |SweatEquity NIL NiL
Commission NIL NIL
4 |- as% of proft NIL NIL
- others, specify NIL NIL
5 |Chers, please specify NIL NIL
Tofal (A) 60,00,000 19,00,000
Total Amount Paid 1o Director 79,00,000
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B. Remuneration to other Directors

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Direciors Total Amount
Sunil Kumar Khera Ashish Sachdeva Surendra Kumar Kaushk | {Re/lag)
1 lindependent Direciors independent Direciors Independent Direciors Independent Direciors
Fee for atending board commitiee meetings NIL MIL NIL .
Commission NiL NIL NIL -
Others, please specify NIL NIL NiL -
Tokat (1) NIL NIL NIL .
2 |Other Non-Executve Direcors NIL NIL NIL R
Fee for atending board commiiee meetings NIL NIL NIL -
Commission NIL NIL NIL
Others, please specify NEL NIL NI
Total {2) NiL NIL NiL
Total (B}={1+2) NIL NiL NIL -
Total Manageriat Remuneration -
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MDManagerfWT D
SN, Particulars of Remuneraton Name of Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount
Name Mr. Ajay Kaushik ' Vijay Kumar Garg {RsfLac)
Designation CFO cs
i |Gross salary 6,45,500 3,60,000 10,05,500
iar r provisions contained i ;
lﬁ’]{ TS}aofa t:e ?:af:‘elgx Act, 1961 " e NIL NIL N,
{b} Value of perquisiies uis 17{2) Income-tax Act, NIL
1961 NIL NIL
{:l ircii:sglg:mu of salary under section 17{3) Incoms NIL NIL Nlj.
2 |Siock Option NIL NIL NIL
3 |Sweat Equity MIL MIL MIL
Commission NIL NIL NIL
4 |- as% ofproft NIL NIL NIL
- others, specify NIL NIL NIL
5 {Ohers, please specify NIL NIL NiL
Total 6.45,500 3,60,000 10,05,500

Vil. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT! COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties / punishment / compounding of offences for breach of any section of Companies Act against the Company or its Directors or other officers in
default, if any, during the year
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HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Himalya International Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Himalaya Food International Limited (“the
Company) which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2018, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow statcment
and the statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsibic for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,2013 (“the Act”) with respect to
the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) referred to in section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting record in accordance with the provision of the Act for safcguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities, sclection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making
Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent ,and design, impilementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the account
records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and ar¢ free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. '

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements arc free from material misstalement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disctosures in the financial
statements. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
musstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair prescntation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements 1n order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposc of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as
wellas evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinton and to the best of our information and according to the cxplanations given to us, the standalone Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles gencrally accepted in India: ;

(i) inthe casc ufthe balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company asat 31 March 2018;
(i1) inthe casc of'the statement of protitand loss, of the loss for the year ended on that date; and
(111} in the casc ofthe cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the yecar ended on that date.

E
27th Annual Report YEAR 2017-2018 {33}



G HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
oo

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A’ statement on the matters specified
in the paragraph 3 & 4 of the order ,to the extent applicable.

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from
our examination of those books;

¢. The balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS Financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
referred to in Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as
amended.

¢.  Onthe basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2018, and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018, from being appoeinted as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  We are enclosing herewith a report in “Annexure B” for our opinion on adequacy of internal financial controls
system in place in the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in Accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors)Rules,2014 in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given tous:

(1} The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its standalone Ind AS
financial statements Refer Note 10 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements.
{(2) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards. for material
foresecable losses, if any , and as required on long-ter contracts including derivative contracts.
(3) There were no amounts which required to be transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund.
For Satnam Associates.
Firm Registration No.009870C
Chartered Accountants
(Satnam Singh)
Proprictor, FCA,
M No0.79646
Place: Dehradun
Dated: 31.05.2018
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ANNEXURE ‘A’

ANNEXURE 'A’

(Referred to under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our Report of even date)

Report on Companics (Auditor's Report) Order,2016 ("the Order') issued by the central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) of Himalya International Limited ('the Company")

I.a.) The company has gencrally maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed asscts.

b.) According to information and explanation given to us there is a regular programme of physical verification of these
fixed assets by the management which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to size of the company and nature of its
asscts. As informed to us no material discrepancics were noticed on such verification.

¢.) Asinformed tous and as verified by us during the course of our audit the title deeds on immovable properties are held
in name of company as at the balance sheet date.
1i. As informed 1o us the inventories were physical verified during the year by the managcment at reasonable intervals and
no mdtenal discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

i. As informed to us the company has granted unsecured loans to companies covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of such loans:

(Rs'000M)
Name of the company Nature of loan Balanceason 31.03.2018 Maximum Amount Due
APJ Laboratories Ltd. Advance against 568 568
purchase

a.) Asinformedtousand as \»}eriﬁed by us the terms and condition of grant to such loans are not prejudicial to the interest of
the company.,

b.) Repayment of the principle amount and payment of intercst on such toans has not been stipu&ated, asitis in the nature of
“Advance against purchases” |

c.} Not Applicable

iv. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has complied with the provision of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and
sccurities, as applicable during the year.

v. The company has not accepted any deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31,
2017 and therefore, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vi. Reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable as the company's business activities are not covered by the
companies (Cost Record and Audits) Rules, 2014.

vii.a.) According to records of the company and information and explanation given to us the company has generally been
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax. service-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authoritics.

According to information and explanation given to us there are no outstanding statutory dues as referred above as at the last
day of'the financial year under audit for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable as below :

Particulars of Dues Amount Rs Lacs
PF 4
ESI 8

TR, ]
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b.) As certified by the management on which we have relied upon the ducs of income tax or sale tax or service tax or duty of
custom or duty of excise or value added fax or cess which have not been deposited on account of dispute and the forum
where the dispute is pending are given bellow:

Particulars of dues  Amount Rs." Lacs Financial Year to Forum where
which amount relates dispute is pending
Excise Duty 3.78 1999-2000 Tribunal
viii. Based on our audit procedure and in accordance with the information and explanation given to us by the company has not

defaulted in repayment of dues to banks. The company does not have any loans or borrows from financial institutions or
government and has not issued any debenmres.

ix. The company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debts
instrument) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3(ix) of the Order is notapplicable,

x. According to the information and explanation given to us there has been no fraud noticed or reported during the year by the
company or on the company by its officers or employces.

xi. In our opinion the managerial remuneration paid/provided during the year is in accordance with requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of Companies Act 2013,

xii. The company is notanidhi company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanation given to us the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable, for al! iransactions with the related parties and details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement ot shares or fully or partly convertible debentures

during the year under review.

xv. As informed to us, during the year the company has not entered info any non-cash transactions with any of its directors or
persons connected with the directors.
xvi. The Company is not required to getregistered under section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act 1 934,

For Satnam Associates.
Firm Registration No.009870C
Chartered Accountanis

(Satnam Singh)
Proprietor, FCA.
M No.79646

Place: Dehradun
Dated: 31.05.2018

27th Annual Report YEAR 2017-2018

{36}



Hl‘:rlalaya‘;jc_;‘dﬁ

HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ANNEXURE'B' TOTHE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 3(f) to “Report on Other legal and regulatory requirement” of the independent Auditors™ Report of
even date to the members of Himalaya Food International Limited on standalone Ind AS financial statement for the year
cnded March 31,2018

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of Sub Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) '

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Himalaya Food International Limited (“the
Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statement of the Company for the
year ended on that datc.

Management s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls.

The Company s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls base on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants on India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficicnt conduct of its business,
including adherence to company s Policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and Completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company s internal financial controls over financial reporting base on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Compantes Act, 2013, to the extent applicablc on an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintamed and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respect. Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the mternal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness cxists, and testing and cvaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of intcrnal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence I/we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for out audit opinion on the Company s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's intemal financial control over {inancial rcporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company 's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that:

]
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1}  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accuratety and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

2)  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as neccssary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company arc being made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the company: and

3)  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition ofthe company s assets that could have a matcrial effect on the financial statement.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
cotlusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or traud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subjcct to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intenal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were opcrating effectively as at March 31, 2018,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria cstablished by the company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Satnam Associates.
Firm Registration No.009870C
Chartered Accountants

(Satnam Singh)
Proprietor, FCA.
M No.79646

Place: Dehradun
Dated:; 31.05.2018
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Form A
(For audit report with unmodified opinion)
Pursuant to Regulation 33 of SEBI (listing obligation and disclosure requirements) Regulation, 2015

1 Name of the Company HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

| 2 Annul financial statements for March 31,2018 (standalone Result for the
the year ended quarter and year ended March 31,2018)
3 Type of audit observation Matter of Emphasis Report
4 Frequency of observation Appeared third time
SIGNATURES

~ Chairman and Managing Director {Man mohan Malik)
Chairman of Audit Committee {Man mohan Malik)

CFO (Ajay Kaushik)

For Satnam Associates.
Firm Registration No.009870C
Chartered Accountants

(Satnam Singh)
Propnietor, FCA.
M No.79646

Place: Dehradun
Dated: 31.05.2018
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Himalaya Foud Tnternational Limited
Bualance sheet as at March 31, 2018
£l cmonms in R e focs unfess ctherwise stuted)
Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2018 Murch 31, 2017

ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 3 15.709 16,217
Capital work-in-progress 3 5491 5,253
Financial assets
i [ovestments 4a 10 10
i Loans 4b S568 366
iti Other financial assets EN 797 142
Other non-curtent assets 5 1,789 3122
Total non-current assets 24,363 25,960
Current assets
Inventories & 6,552 6.544
Financial assets
i Trade receivables 4d 2,024 3,640
ii  Cash and cash equivalents 4¢ 47 YR
iii Bank balance other than {(i1) above 4f 107 17
Other current asscts 7 10 8
Total current assets 8,740 10.408
Total assels 33,103 36,368
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity sharc capital Ka 6,065 5.787
Other equity 6,134 6,219
12,199 12,006
Liabilities

Non-current liabilitics
Financial liabilitics

i Borrowings % 11,237 12,049

i Other financial habilities 9c 44 3416
Provisicn lla 274 274
Deferred Lax liabilities {net} 771 201
Other non-current liabilities 1lb 8o 66
Tutal non-current liabilities 12,414 16,606

Current liabilities
Financial habilities

i Borrowing Sh 5,550 5413

ii  Tradc payables ad 1.351 1,041

iti  Other financial liabilities Qe 1,348 1.053

Provision for employee benefit obligations 11b 36 31

Other current habilities g 206 218
Tatal current liabilities 8,490 1,756
‘Total equity and liabilities 33,103 36,368

‘he accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of cven date For and on behalf of the Board
For SATNAM ASSOCIATES

Chartered Acvountants

Firm Registration No, D09870C

Man Mohan Malik Sangita Malik
Chairman & Managing Direclor
{Satnam Singh } DIN:OE6077 DIN:O2428506
Proprictor FOA
Membership no, 79640
Dhated: 31.052018 Ajay Kauashik Yijay Garg
Place : Dehradun TG Company Secretary

#
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Himalaya Food International Limited
Statement of profit and loss account for the year ended March 31, 2018
(AN amounts in Rs in lacs unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Continuing operations

Revenue from operations 12 11,159 12,129
Other income 13 126 239
Taotal income 11,286 12,369
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 14 4,229 5,184
Changes in inventory of work-in-progress & finished goods 15 86 (733)
Employee benefits expense : 16 985 1,137
Financc costs 19 1,793 1,936
Depreciation and amortisation expense 17 1,170 1,138
Other expenses 18 3,076 3,694
Total expenses 11,340 12,356
Profit hefore exceptional items and tax {54) 13
Exceptional items
i Provision for write-off of fire claim 62 247
Profit / loss before tax from continuing operations (115) (234)

Tax expense
i Current tax -
it Deferred tax (31 ’ 10
Profit / (Loss) from continuing operations (85) (244)
Profit / {1.oss} from discontinued operations - -

Other comprehensive income - -

Earnings per equity share {for continuing operations)
i Basic carnings per share (0.13) (7.34)
ii Diluted carnings per sharc (0.14) {6.74)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

For SATNAM ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 009870

Man Mohan Malik Sangita Malik
Charrman & Managing Director
{Satnam Singh } DIN:00696077 DIN:02428506
Proprictor FCA
Membership no. 79646
Dated: 31.05.2018 Ajay Kaushik - Yijay Garg
Place : Dehradun CFO Company Secretary

e A
27th Annual Report YEAR 2017-2018 {41}



HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

L.

Hﬂnalaya

K] - - - - - - [ - e TIE'L - u povRd FmnIOdal 3 o o DL IE AT R
B A - - - - - 0 - - - - FeNeds 09 01} Aaury S e Ly
_ - A M - - - I - - - - SHULLEY PAUINIAL D) JYSUN],
N N C N C N - 0 B - - - SPUZPEAIQ]
[ — - - B B - Amxu B - - - A4 DR 26y MUBIUT
6ley N N = N - - A - IS ol N Satsuangaadin pao ]
- - - - = = = = = = = Pouad AuiEadal o BTHRG )1 1% saue|eq pamsdy
- - - - - - - - - - - T g T I A [0 T aE 11 s SHURg
6109 - - - - - - 6151 - qLeE 7T - o potaad Fupaindal 2y gu Feooatidag a4 2208 R
Rl |
) [ETLIT:
[oumyen TUIIELS ans WML AN WIS
; ) Apoadey EYNEERE)
Apasdgy | mmmeany syl moyasduiny | usyasdie [EIdaRUL] WAUO[E
) Tunuey FREELAYS umpunlg  |aAdasay
1dva amys| asoag 2as| Burpepsed) safpaly iyl izt : N i punoding | Rupuad
. B E NI rpde -

paede | uogarduey uu aujqysey | yBnon yinwnn pRuierTy ey S buint Y kit kLG ATUoUr a0

paaanal Ly e | scudsgn | sngding | o wonind | usumasuf | oanmso) wauoduzos | voneondde
yE | Kouopy | suan sy | eBumyan | uonmeary | 2angq Aunba W] sifelms pue salaeny Aimby RICUIN SR SR
Aunba Jauicy e
COr g % panad Fuadal 20 30 pun Sl 1B IDURIER
wiT m TR AL AUDNE (R A1elE Alnha 01 SFUR Y
A W ot A paodan ayy i FunEag ap e U e
junomy Aoy, sagnanIeg

[l s Anabd y

{[ar1s SELYUDLIL SEMUN $3R| O] $3 O $IUNOWE ¥}
RTOT 1§ YMEJ PAIUD 1833 ) o) Apnba m srEaegd Jo Jusunelg

PN [BUCTRILIALEY Poo ] EdBiRwIH

27th Annual Report YEAR 2017-2018

{42}



HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Hﬁnalaya ‘;;l/egé

Himalaya Food International Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2018

AN omeunts in Rs in lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Loss before Income Tax from
Contimuing Operations
Adjustenent for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Deferred Tax
Finance costs
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjusement for:
{Increase)idecrease in trade recervables
tIncrease) decrease in inventories
Increase in Trade payables
{Increase) in other financial assets
{Tncreaseddecrease in other non-current assets
{Increase)'decrease in other current assets
Increasc in employee benefit obligations
Increase in other Current Liabilities
Increase in other non-Current Liabilities
Cash ganerated from operations
Tncome tax paid
Net cash inflow from operating activities
Cash flows fram investing activities
Payments of property, plant and equipment
Investment in Subsidary
Loans to employees and related parties
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Cash flows (rom financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares
Proceeds from bomowings
Finance lease payments
Finance Fxpenses
Net cash used in financing activities
et increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even dute
For SATNAM ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Fimm Registration No. 009870C

{Sainam Singh }
Proprietor FUA
Membership no. 79646

Dated: 31.05.2018
Place : Dehradun

{83) (244}
1,170 1,138
(31) i0
1,793 1,936
2,932 3,084
1,617 (270}
(&) {537)
310 340
(3 {48)
1,333 200
{2) C))
5 4
2R3 327
{3,349) 9
184 1
3,032 2.861
ano 371
- 10
2 r -
902 381
278 -
137 182
812 653
1,793 1,936
2,191 2,407
(61) 73
215 141
154 215
For and on hehalf of the Board
Man Mohan Malik Sangita Malik
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:00696077 DIN-02428506
Ajay Kaushik Vijay Garg
CFO Company Sectetary
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Himalya International Ltd.

Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS : Himalaya Food International Ltd., incorporated in New Delhi, India with UIN
1.70102DL1992PLC047399, is a food processing company engaged in growing & pracessing of mushrooms and Manufacturing IQF
ready 10 eat items-which is classified as one segment . [t is exporting its products to USA and also selling them domesticaily. The
Company is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation : These financial statemcents have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS”) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 3 of the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016,

The financial stalements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policics are applied consistently toall
the periods presented in the financial statcments. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or nen current as per the
Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division I of Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on
the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and
liabilitics. The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company. Items included in the financial
statements of the Company are recorded using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the
“functional currency’). Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company have been
reflected as 07 in the relevant notes in these financial statements. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st
March, 2018 were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 31st May, 2018.

(h) Basic of measurement: The These financial statements arc peepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise
indicated. r

2.2 Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements : The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on
historical experiencc and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

2.3 Recent Accounting Developments :

{a) Standards issued but not yet eff ective: IND AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with Customers :in March 2011 8, the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs issued the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} (Amendments) Rules, 2017, notifying Ind AS 113, ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’. The Standard is applicable to the Company with effect from 1st April, 2018.

2.4 Significant Accounting Policies :(a) Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost
net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. if any. Property. plant and cquipment acquired 1n a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate assct, as appropriate, only whenitis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost arc charged to the Statcment of
Profit and Loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment arc recognised in the Siatement of Profitand Loss.
Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet arc disclosed as “Capital work-in-
progress”.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule [T to the
Companies Act, 2013 with the exception of the following:

Plant and equipment is depreciated over 3 to 30 years based on the technical evaluation of usetul lifc done by the management.

Assets costing * 5,000 or less are fully depreciated mn the ycar of purchase,

#
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Frechold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful Hves and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(b) Intangible Assets: Scparately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, ifany.

The uscful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite orindefinite. Finite-life intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the peried of their expected useful lives. Estimated useful lives by major class of finite-life intangible asscts are as follows:
Design- 10 years

Know-how - 10 years

Computer software - 5 years

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for finite-life intangible assets is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate,

For indefinite life intangible assets, the assessment of indefinite lifc is reviewed annually 1o determine whether it continues, if not. it is
impaired or changed prospectively basis revised estimates.

Goodwill is initially recognised based on the accounting policy for business combinations [refer note 2.4.(r)]. These assets arc not
amortised but are tested for impairment annually, )

(¢} Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures: Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, 1f any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is
assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture, the difference between net disposal preceeds and the carrying amounts are recegrized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

(d) Inventories: Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costis computed on a ;veighlcd average basis. Cost
of finished goods and work-in-progress include all costs of purchases, conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories 1o their present lecation and condition. The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
busingss less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(e} Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents are short-term (three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(f} Assets Held for Sale: Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as “held for sale’ when
all of the following criterias are met: (1) decision has been made to sell. (11) the assets are available for immediate sale in its present
condition. (iii) the assets are being actively marketed and (iv) sale has been agreed or is expected 1o be concluded within 12 months of
the Balance Sheet date.

Subsequently, such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as *held for sale” are measurcd at the lower of its carrving value and
fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

(g) Financial Instruments: Financial Assets: Financial assets arc recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through
profit and less (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are
attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at

- amortised cosi

- fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
. _____________________________________________________________________|]
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- fair value through other comprechensive income (FVOCT),

Financial assets are not reclassified subseguent to their recognition, excepi if and in the period the Company changes its business model
for managing financial assets.

Trade Receivables and Loans: Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets arc held at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future
cash income through the expected life of financial instrument.

Debt Instruments: Debt instruments arc initially measured at amortised cost. fair value through other comprehensive incorme
(‘FVOCI") or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) 1ill derecognition on the basis of (i) the Company’s business model for
managing the financial asscts and (ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

(i) Measured at amortised cost: Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective s to hold financial asscts in
order to collcet contractual cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (‘EIR ") method less impairment, it any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Measured at fair value throngh other comprehensive income: Financial asscts that are held within a business modcl whose
objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income {OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to
*other income’ in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

(iii) Measured at fair valae through profit or Joss: A financial assct not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classificd as
FVTPL. Such financial asscts are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if
any, recognised as *other income” in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Equity Instruments: Ali investments in cquity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured a1 fair value , the
Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably clect to measure the same either at FVOCTor FVTPL.

The Company makes such clection on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument is recognised as
‘other income” in the Statement of Profit and L.oss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI, Tair value
changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OC1. Amounts recognised in OCT are not
subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised
as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative Financial Instruments: The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge
its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measurcd at fair value. Any changes therein are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss account. Derivatives are carricd as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial Habilities when the fair value is
negative.

Derecognition : The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the contractual nghts to receive the cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Asset : The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss
allowance on the following:

1. Trade receivables

ii. Financial assets measured at amortized cost (other than trade receivables)

tii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL 1s measured and
recognized as loss allowance.

e ————————— e ———————————— e — e e P el B —rr
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In case of other assets (listed as ii and iii above), the Company determines if there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financizl asset since initial recognition. I the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 1 2-month ECL
is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is
measured and recognized as loss allowance.

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive (1.¢., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset. 12-
maenth ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default eveits that are possible within 12 months from the reporting date.

£CL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiascd and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of cutcomes, taking
into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

As u practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables. The
provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are updated.

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss under the head *Other expenses’.

Financial Liabilities: Initial recognition and measurement : Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities arc initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial
recognition, they are classified as fair value through protit and loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Subsequent measurement : Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial
liabilities carried at fair valuc through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement
of Profitand Loss, '

Derecognition ; A financial liability 1s derecognised when the obligation specified in the contractis discharged, cancelled or expires.

{h} Provisions and Contingent Liabilities: Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outtlow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects the current market assessments of the time valuc of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whelly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. |

(I) Revenue Recognition: Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership in the
goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract, there is no continuing managerial involvement with the goods and the
amount of revenue can be measured teliably, The Company retains no effective control of the goods transferred to a degree usually
associated with ownership and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the
sale of goods. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts,
volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalfofthe government which are levied on sales such as sales ax, value added tax,

goods and services tax, etc.
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Income from export incentives such as duty drawback and premium on sale of import licenscs and lease license fee are recognised on
accrual basis.

Income from services rendered is recognised based on agreements/ arrangements with the customers as the service is performed in
proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Dividend income on investments is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

(j) Government Grant: The Company is entitled to "MEIS Scheme’ under export incentive. Such incentive arc measured at amount
receivablc from the government and arc recognised as other operating revenue. The Company will comply with all necessary conditions
attached to incentives.

(k) Expenditure: Expenses are accounted on accrual basis.

(1) Employee Benefits: Defined contribution plans : Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employces state insurance
are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees.
Company’s provident fund contribution, in respect of certain employees. 1s made to a government administered fund and charged as an
expensc to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Retirement and other employee benefits: (a) Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged 1o the Profit and Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There
are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective funds.

(b)Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of valuationon projected unit credit method made
atthe end of each financial year.

{(c)No provision is made for unencashable short term compensated absences.

{(m) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets: Asscssment for impairment is done al each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any
indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. Indefinite life intangibles are subject to areview for impainment annually or more
frequently if events or circumstances indicate that it is nccessary. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that arc largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of asscts is considered as a cash generating unit. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to cach of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

If any indication of impairment exists, an cstimate of the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash gencrating unit is made.
Asset/cash generating unit whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount by
recognising the impairment loss as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount ofany goodwill (ifany) allocated to the cash generating unit and then to the other assets of the unit, pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less cost of
disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash tlows expected to arise from the continuing use of
an asset or cash generating unit and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to
whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may
have decreased, basis the assessment a reversal of an impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is recognised in the Statement of
Profitand Loss account.

(n) Income Taxes: Income tax expensc for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination or to an item which is recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income,

Current tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable incomeloss for the year using applicable tax rates at the Balance Sheet
date, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. Interest expenscs and penalties, if any, related to incomc tax are included
in finance cost and other expenses respectively, Interest Income, if any, related to Income tax is included in current tax expense.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of asscts and liabiiities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
e "
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A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively cnacted, by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the assct can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to scttle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsct when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxcs levied by the same taxation authority.

{0) Leases: Leascs in which a substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments and reccipis under such leases are recognised to the Statement of Profitand Loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease unless the lease payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, in which case the same are recognised as an expense in line with the
contractual term.

Leases are classified as finance jeases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership to the lessee.

(p) Foreign Currencies: Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates at the date of the
transaction. Foreign cxchange gains and losses from settlement of these transactions, and from translation of monetary assets and
liabilities at the reporting date exchange rates are recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

1q) Earnings Per Share: Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presenicd is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other
than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a cotresponding
change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted carnings per share. the net profit for the period attributable to equity shdreholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

i) Business Combination: Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at the date of the
acquisition, which is the date at which control is transferred to the Company. The consideration transferred in the acquisition and the
;dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed ar¢ recognised at fair values on their acquisition date. Geodwill is initially measured
at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controliing interests, and
any previous interest beld, over the net identifiable asscts acquired and liabilities assumed. The Company recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-contrelling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. Consideration transferred does not include amounts related to
settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts arc recognised in the Statement of Protitand Loss.

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, other than these incurred in relation to the issuc of debt or equity securities. Any contingent
consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subscquent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration
are recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

——— e ————————————————————___—
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Himalaya Food International Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 315t March, 2018
Note 3: Property, plant and equipment

£l amounts in Rs in facs unless otherwise stated)

o4 | Furnitere, Capital
Particulars Frechold | 1 hold Fr‘ l._ 1d 1 X h fittings and Plam_ and Vehicle Total Wofkln
tand land Building | building i machinery
equipment Progress
Year ended 31 March 2018
Gross carrying amount
Deemed cosi as at 1 April 2016 1482.98 80.64]  6807.08 303.26 133.09] 1536990 556.83] 2473379 525271
Additions 0 6.51 1.42 286.39 78.4 37272
Disposals 0 -1.74 -1.74
Closing gross carrying amounts 1482.98 B0.64] 6813.59 303.26 134,511  15656.1 633.49] 25104.77| 525271
Accumulated depreciation 0 110692 150.08 78.69] 607231 34115 7749135
Depreciation Charged during the vear 0 215.2 9.6 9.24 B48.95 3537 113836
Closing Accumulated depreciation 0 0 132212 159.68 87.93| 6921.26 396.52| 8887.51 0
Net Carrving Amount 1482.98 B0.64| 549147 143.58 46.58| #735.04 236971 16217.26] 525271
Year ended 31 March 2018
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 1482.98 80.04; 6813.59 303.26 13451 156563 63349 25104.771 5252.71
Additions 0 375.08 115.02 0 171.68 0 661.78 237 86
Assets classified as held for sale 0 0 0 (] 0 0 0 0
Drisposals 0 0 0 ¢ 0 Y G 0
Transfers 0 ] 0 0 0 0 0 0
Closing gross carrying amounts 1482.98 80.64] 7188.67 418.28 134.51] 15827.98 633.49] 25766.55| 5490.57
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Opening accumulated depreciation 0 0] 1322.12 159.68 8793 692126 319652 888751 0
Depreciation Charped During the Year 0 0 21541 9.6 9.38 BR1.61 53.69]  1169.69 o
Impaiment loss 0 o 0 0 ¢ 0 ] 0 0
Disposals 0 0 0 i) 0 0 0 0 0
Exchange differences 0 0 0 V] 0 0 0 0 0
Assets classified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 4] 0 0 0
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment 0 0] 153753 169.28 97.311 780287 450211 100572 0
Net carrying amounts 145298 BO.6d|  5651.14 249 37.2]  R025.11 I183.28) 15709.35] 5490.57

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work in progress as at 31st March, 2018 is * 5490.57 lacs {31st March, 2017: * $252.71 lacs)

M
{50} 27th Annunl Report YEAR 2017-2018



HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

o
H:malayg}'uaﬂ

Himalaya Food International Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2018
(Al amounts in Rs in lacs unless atherwise stated)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Note Particulars 2018 2017
4{a): Non-current investments
Unguoted
Investment carried at cost
Investment in cquity nstruments of subsidianes
Himalya Green Apartments Limited 5 5
30,000 {50.000) shares of Rs. 10 each fully pakl up
Appetizer and Snacks Foods Limtted 5 5
50,300 {50,000) shares of Rs. 10 each fully paxd up
Total non-current investments 14} 1

Information about sutsidiaries and joint ventures

Name of the company

MCGTpOT-

Country Principal activities
af

Proportion (%) of equity interest

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

. 2018 2017
ation
Subsidiaries
Himalya Creen Apartments Led India Real estate Company 160 100
Appetizer and Snacks Foods Ltd India Manufacturing 100 100
Joint Venture
Himalya Sinplot Pvt Lid. India FMCGbusiness 50 50
. I As at March 31, As at March 31,
Note Particulars 2018 ) 2017
4(b} Loans
Unsecured, considered good
Advance to associates 568 566
- APJ] Labomtones Ltd
568 566
4(c) Other Financial Assets
Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good
Deposits to others 39 39
Subsidy and Other Receivahles
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Subsidy 319 319
Other loans and advances
Insceured, considered good
Advance tax and tax deducted at source 439 434
Total 797 792
4(d) Trade Receivables
Trade Receivable 2.024 3.640
Receivable from related parties - -
Less : Aliowance for doubtful debts - -
Total Receivable 2,024 3,640
Current Portion 1,654 3,149
Non- Current Portion 0 491
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As at March 31, As at March 31,

Note Particulars 2018 2017
4(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts with scheduled
banks 46 96
On EEFC accounts ' 0 0
Cash on hand 1 1
Total 47 a3
4(f) Other bank balances
Fixed deposits with Banks 167 117
Total 107 117
5 Other Non Current Assets
Capital advances 61 61
Advances to suppliers 193 95
TDS / VAT receivable 129 10
Subsidy and incentive receivable 872 793
MAT Credit entitlerments 185 185
Claimrecegivable 348 1,977
Total 1,789 - 3,122
6 Inventories
Raw Materials 698 633
Work-in-Progress 1,572 2,138
Finished Goods 3,929 3,449
Srorse & Spares 343 325
Total 6,552 6,544
7  Other Current Assets
Prepaid Insurance 10 8
Total 10 8

[ ——— L e
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Hienalaya Food International Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(Al amounts in Rs in lucs unless otherwise swated)

Note Particulars No of Shares Amount
8 Equity Share Capital and Other Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
Authonsed Equity Share Capital
As at 31.03.2017 g 7,50,00,000 © 7,50,000
Increase during the year - -
As at 31.03.2018 7.,50,00,000 7,50,000
Particulars No of Shares Equity share
capital par value
Movement in equity share capital
As at 31.03.2017 5,78,72,884 5,787
Warrant application money 278
As at 31.03.2018 5,78,72,884 6,065

Terms and rights attached ta equity shares

Equity shares have par value of INR 10. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to share in the
proceeds of winding up the company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or proxy, is entitled te one vote, and upon a poll

each share is entitled to one vote.

Issue of share warrants

r

Pursuant to Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 12.01.2018, 3500000 share warrants were issued to general
public and body corporate on 18.01.2018. Share applicationey money amounting to Rs, 2,77,50,000 was reccived

(b) Reserves and surplus

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2018 2017
Capital reserve 1321.69 1321.69
Securnities preminmreserve 3377.89 337784
Retained earmings 1434.54 1519,19
Total 6134.12 6218.72
(i) Capital Reserve
Opening balance 1321.69 1321.69
Closing balance 1321.69 1321.69
(ii) Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 3377.89 3377.89
Closing balance 3377.89 3377.89
(i) Retained earmings
Opening balance 1519.19 1763.27
Loss forthe year (84.64} (244.08)
Closing balance 1,434.55 1,519.19
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B. Nature and purpose of reserves )
(a) Capital Reserve: Capital Subsidics received by the company is treated as capital reserve.

(b) Securities Premium Reserwe: The amount received in excess of facc value of the equity shares is
recognised in Securities Premium Reserve.

(c) General Reserve: The Company has transterred a portion of the net profit of the Company before declaring
dividend to general reserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of Conpanies Act, 1956. Mandatory transfer to
general reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013.

{d Retained Farnings: Retained camings are the profits that the Company has eamed till datc, less any
transfers 1o general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to sharcholders.

C. Capital Management
Equity share capital and other equity arc considered for the purposc of Company’s capital management.

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem and to optimise
retums to shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of its
strategic and day-to-day necds with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market

The management and the board of directors monitors the retum on capital as well as the level of dividends to
shareholders. The Company may take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital
structure.

"]
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(All amounts in Rs in lacs unless otherwise stated)

. A Terms of Rate of Interest As at As at
Note Particulars Maturity Date repayment o March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
9  Financial liabilities
(a) Non-currcnt borrowings
Secured
Term Loans
From Banks
Rupee Loan 30.00.2024 Quarterly 11.30 9,257 9,609
Rupee Loan 30.06.2024 Quarterly 10.65 235 248
Foreign Currency Loan 30.06.2024 Quarterly 4+Libor 3,021 3016
(USD) .
Long term maturities of finance lease obligations
Obligations under finance lease 01.09.2017  Monthly 10.82-11.00 73 104
Total Non Current Borrowing 12,586 12,977
Less Current maturitics on long term debt 1,309 884
Less Current maturitics on loan from other Parties 39 45
Total Non-Current Borrowings (As per Balance Sheet) 11,238 12,048
(b) Current borrowings
From Banks
Payableon  Payable on
Rupee Loan demand demand 11.30 5,550 5,413
Total Current Borrowing 5,550 5413

Secured borrowings and ussels pledged as

a. TermLoans are secured by First pari passu charge over the entire fixed asscts of the company at Paonta sahib (H.P.)
and Mehsana (Cujarat), with Joint Lending Forum comprising SBI,Corporation Bank, Bank of Baroda and Exim Bank.
alongwith persenal guarantees of the Dircctors and Promotors.

b. All working capital limits are secured by first pari passu charge over the entire current assets of the company, along

with personal guarantces of promoters.

¢.  Allvehicle loans are secured against the vehicle and personal guarantee of the CMD, Mr. Man Mohan Malik, taken

from BMW Financial Services and Mahindra Finance

Particulars of Unhedged foreign Carrency Exposure as at the Balance Sheet date

Particulars 2018 2017
Rs. US$ Rs. Uss
Secured loan (Fxim Bank) 3,021 47 3,016 47
Conversion rate applied 1 USD= Rs. 65.12 (Previcus rate Rs.64.85)
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Himalaya Food International Limited
Notes to the standalene financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018
{Allamounts in Rs in lacs unless otherwise stated) ’

As at As at

Note articulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017

9(c) Other Financial liahilities

Non Current (Other)
Advances and deposits from customers 44 1
Customer Deposit - 3,415
Total Other Non—current Financial liabilites 44 3416
Current
Current maturitics of long-term debt 1,309 884
Current maturities on fmance lease obligations 39 45
Capital Creditors for(purchase of fixed assets) - 125
Total Other current Financial liabilites 1,348 1,053

9(d) Trade payables

Current
Trade payables 1,351 . 1,041
Total 1,351 1,041
$0 Other Current Liabilities
Other payables
Expense payable 174 162
TDS payable (taxdeducted at source) 21 47
Employees State fnsurance payable 4 2
Enployees Provident Fund payable 8 7
Total 206 218
Contingent Liabilities not provided for
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2018  March 31,2017
Guarantees and Counter guarantees given by the Conpany 74 65
Letter of credit 172 208
Income Taxdemand in respect of assessment years 2013-14 0 1,529

against which the Company had gone in appeal

Excise duty on Domestic Tanff Areas sales pending in Dethi 4 4
Tribunal
Corporate Guarantee given 1 1

M
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Himalaya Food International Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(Al amounts in Rs in lacs unless otherwise siated)

Note Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017
11
(a) Provisions Cumrent Non-current Total Currenit  Non-current Total
Provision for tax - 274 274 - 274 274
Total - 274 274 - 274 274
Deferred Payment Liabilities 2018 2017
Particulars
Deferred Current Asscts (Liabilities) as per Balance Sheet {801} (792)
Deferred Tax Liability
Depreciation as per Companies Act 4,170 1,138
Depreciation as per Incotme Tax Act 1,086 1,177
Difference (84) 39
Deferred Tax Liability (27) 13
Deterred Tax Assets on 43B ltens
PF (limployers Share) not deposited as on 31.03.2016 8 7
ESI (Enplovers Share) not deposited as on 31.03.2016 4 2
Total 11 9
Deferred Tax Assets 4 3
3l (10
Net Deferred Tax Liability ) (801)
Particulars March 31.2018 March 31,2017
(b} Employee Benefit obligation Current  Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity 15 89 103 15 66 80
Provision for leave encashment 22 - 22 16 - 16
Total 36 89 125 31 06 97

Brief Description: A general description of the defined benefit plans is given below:-

a Farned Leave Benefit (F1.)
Accrual-1 leave per 20 working days
Accumulation up to 30 days allowed
EY accumulated m excess of 30 days is lapsed
b Sick Leawe (S1.)
Accrual-7 days per year
Encashment while in service is not allowed

Encashment on retirement is permitted and entire accunulation 13 allowed for encashment
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Gratuity:
Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of valuation on projected unit credit
method made at the end of each financial year.

Key Parameters 2018 2017
Discount rate 8% 8%
Expected rate of retum on assets 0 0
Healthcare cost increase rate ' 0 0
Rate Of Increase in Compensation levels 10% 10%

The cstimates of future Salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account the inflation, senfority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in employment market.

Post Retirement Medical Benefits

There is no post retirement medical benefit in the company

Retirement Benefits

At the time of superannuation, employees are entitled for reimbursement of expenses towards travel, transportation of
personal effects from their place of retirement to the new location up to certain linits depending on the designation of
the enployee at the time and one month's salary as settling allowance.

The following contributions to Defined Contributions plans are treated as expense during the year:
Defined Contribution Plan Expenses Contribution
recognised for key
during management
201718 personnel

2016-17
Employer’s contribution to prevident fund 2,996 22
{Previous year) (1955) (22)
Emplover's Contribution to Employee State Insurance ) 778 0
{Previous year) 674) o
The amount recognised in the balance sheet for post enployment benefit plans are as under :
Gratuity Post Other
Particulars {Unfunded) Retirement  Retirement
Medical Benefits
Benefit
Present value ofunfunded obligation 10,317 0 0
{Previous year) {8030} 0 0
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Himalaya Food International Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 3]st March, 2018

(All amounts in Rs in lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
12 Revenue from Operations
Sale of goods
Sales- BExpornt 3,206 5,539
Sales- Domestic 7,953 6,590
Total 11,159 12,129
13 Other Income
Minimum Guarantee against processing charges - i8
Flood Claim Received 20
Export Incentives 106 221
Total 126 239
14 Raw Material & Consumables Consumed
Raw nuterial at the beginning of the year 958 1,154
Add:
Purchases 3,264 3,832
Freight inward 43 . 6
Packing Expenses 1,015 1,149
Less: Raw material at the cnd of the year 1,051 958
Total - 4,229 5,184
15 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Opening Stock
Goods in process 2,138 1,934
Finished goods 3,449 2,920
5.587 4,854
Closing Stock
{oods in process 1,572 2,138
Finished goods 3,929 3,449
5,501 5,587
Increase/(Decrease) in inventories (86) 733
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Himalaya Food International Limited
Netes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2018

(Al amounts in Rs in facs wnless otherwise Stuted)
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Note Particulars

17 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of propenty, plant and equipment 1.170 1,138
Total 1,170 1,138

18 Other expenses

Power and fuel 1,144 1157
Rent;

- Offices and Godowns 5 5
Ratcs and taxes 18 25
Insurance 14 21
Repairs and maintenance:

- Plant and machinery 45 12
- Building 11 22
- Onhers - 2
Advertiscment and sales promotion 12 27
Postage and courier 3 3
Travelling and conveyance 70 114
Printing and stationery 6 2
Commmunication . 10 6
Legal and professional 42 %
Payment to Auditors 5 6
Selling Expenses 1 48% 1,943
Freight Cutward 101 169
Other cxpenses 101 . 91
Total 3,076 3,694

Auditor's Remuneration
{included under other expenses)

Professional Fee

-Audit Fees 5 5

-Tax Audit Fees ¢ 1

Reimbunsement of Expenses 0 U
3 6

19 Finance cost

Interest and finance charges on

financial kabilities not at fair value

through profit or loss 1,793 1.936

Total 1,793 1,936

Assets Taken on Operating Lease

a  The compay has taken various residential, office, warehouse and plot under operating lease agreements,
The lease agreements generally have an escalation clause and there are no subleases. These leases are
generally not non-cancellable and are renewable by mmitual concent on nurually agreed terms. There are
no restriction imposed by lease agreement,
The aggregale lease rentals payables are charged as Rent ' in note 18,

¢ The year wise breakup of future lease payments in respect of leased premises are as under:

Year ended Yeur ended

par
articulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Minimum lease payments:

Not later than 1 ycar 5 5
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 0 0
Later than 5 years 0 0

m_
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Himalaya Food International Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(ANl amounts in Rs in lacs unless otherwise stated)

20 Disclosures pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 and Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

a  Loans and advances in the nature of loans given to the subsidiarics, associates and others and investment in shares of the

cotnpany. by such companies:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2618 March 31, 2017
(i} Loans and advances
APJ Laboratories Ltd 568 566
Doon Vallev Foods Pvt Ltd, 223 3
(i) Investment in ahares of subsidary companies:
Himalva Green Apartments Ltd 3 5
(50000 shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up)
Appetizer and Snacks Foods Ltd 5 5
(50000 shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up)
b Related party disclosures
Name of related parties
Key Management Personnel and their relatives Mr. M.M. Malik
Mrs. Sangita Malik
Enterprises over which key management personnel / shareholders and their Himalya Carbonates Pvt. Ltd.
relatives have significant influcnce Doon Valley Foods Pvt. Ltd,
APJ Laboratories Ltd
Himalya Simpiot Pvt Lid.
Subsidiary companies Himalya Green Apartments Ltd
Appetizer and Snacks Foods Ltd
Nature of transaction Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(1) Managerial remuneration
Mr. M.M. Malik 60 102
Mrs. Sangita Malik 19 19
(ii) Loans and advances
AP] Laboratories Ltd 568 566
Doon Valley Foods Pyt Lid, 223 3
(iif) Investment in shares of subsidary companies:
Himalya Green Apartments Ltd 5 5
(50000 shares of Rs. 10 each fuily paid up)
Appetizer and Snacks Foods Ltd 5 5
(50000 shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up)
¢ Derivative instruments and hedged foreign currency exposures
Particulars of derivatives Year ended 31st March, 2018 Year ended 31s¢ March, 2017
Rs.(000) US$(000) - Rs.(000) US$(000)
Forward contract outstanding as at
Balance Sheet date 4,94 863 7,400 1] ]

Purpose Hedge of expected future sales
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d Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprise s as per MSMED Act, 2006

The classification of the suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 is made on the basis of information made available to the
Company. The Company has neither paid any intercst in the terms of section 16 of the above said act nor any interest
remains unpaid and no payments were made beyond the “appointed date” to such enterprises during the year ended
31.03.2018. Amount outstanding to these enterprises to the year ended 31.03.2018 is Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. Nil).

Secgment Disclosure

Information About the Secondary Segments
Revenue and sundry debtors as per geographical markets

Particulars Rewenue Sundry debtors

2018 2017 2018 2017
India 9,285 6,590 687 328
QOutside India 1,874 5.539 1,337 3,313
Total 11,159 12,129 2,024 3,640

The Company has common fixed assets for producing goods for domestic Market and Overseas Market, Hence, separate
figures for fixed assets / additions to fixed assets cannot be fumished.

Earning per shares (EP.S.) Year ended Year ended
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Basic EP.S. Q.15 -0.42
D¥luted E.P.S. 0.4 -0.42
Calculation of basic EP.5.
a) Net profit for the vear atiributable to equity shareholders {85) (244)
b} Weighted average number of equity shares 5,78,72,884 5.78,72.884
¢) Basic earmings per share (a/b) -0.15 {42
d) Nominal value per sharc Rs. 10/- Rs. 10/-
Calculation of diluted shares ’
Weighted average number of equity shares _ 5.78,72,884 578,72 884
Number of shares in respect of shares warrants 35,00,000 -
Total: 6,13,72,884 5,78.72.884

Disclosure of the Company's interest In jointly controlled assets:
The Company has interest in the following jointly controlled entity:

Company's Amount of Partners and their participating
Name Of the company interest {* of Inves tment interest
holding) Rs '000
Hirnalya Simmplot Private Ltd. 50 1,14936  Simplot India LIC 0%

The Company had invested in 50% shareholding of Himalya Simplot Private Limited (the "jont venture”) which was
managed by the )V partner, Simplot India LLC.

The Company has access to the audited accounts of the joint venture for the financial year ended 31 March 2014. Audited
financial statements for subsequent years have not been made available to the Company. Based on information available
with the Company that the operations of the joint venture have ceased, the Managemeni, as & measure of abundant
prudence, made a provision for dimunition in the value of the investment made in the entity in the financial year ended 31

Consequently accounts of Jointly held entity are not consolidated with the company's accounts.

The Company as well Simplot India LLC have preferred counter claims against each other.

a.  Simplot Tndia LLC has invoked arbitration at Singapore which the Company has challenged on grounds of
jurisdiction. The Company has been legaily advised that the claim of Simplot India L.LC is untenable and liable to be
rejected or substantially diluted, and accordingly, no provision is considered necessary.

b. The Company has filed casc against Simplot India LLC before the Hon'ble Delhi High Court. which has been dirceted
10 Delhi High Court arbitration centre.

HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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h  There are no materiai prior year items included in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent disclosed at the
appropriate place in the Notes,

I During the year there is no liablity to pay MAT as there is carried forwad business loss,

J Transfer pricing

the transfer pricing legislation. The management believes that the aforesaid legisiation will not have any impact on the
financial statements, particularly on its tax expense and liability,

k  Previous Year Comparatives
Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged where hecessary to conform to current year's presentation.

Signatures to Notes | to 20
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For SATNAM ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 009870C

Man Mohan Malik Sangita Malik
Chairman & Managing Director Director
(Satnam Singh ) DIN:00696077 DIN: 02428506
Proprietor FCA
Membership no. 79646
Dated: 31.05.2018 Ajay Kaushik Vijay Garg
Place : Dehradun CFo Company Secretary
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HIMALAYA FOOD INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

CIN: L70102DL1992PLC047399

Regd. Office: E-555, 2 Floor, Palam Extension, Sector-7, Dwarka, New Delhi - 110077
Phone: 91-011-45108600, 61-1704- 223494, Fax: 225178Website: htips://himalavatoodcompany.com’

Form MGT-11

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(8} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s):
Registerad Address:
E-mail ID:

Folio / DP 1D - Client ID No.;

I { ¥We being the member(s) of shares of Himalya International Limited hereby appoint;
1 Name: Address:

E-Mail ID: Signature: or failing him / her
2 Name; Address:

E-Mail ID: _Signature: or failing him / her

as mylour proxy to attend and vote {on a poll} for mefus and on myfour behalf to be held on Saturday, the 29th Day of
September 2018, at 03:00 PM at PRIYANKA PARTY HALL Adjoining Vandana International School Behind Dwarka Court
{Near Sector - 10 Metro Station ) New Delhi and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated

below:
sr.No. | Resolution | For [Against
Ordinary Resolution :
1 Adoption of audited finuncial statements (standalone and consolidated) of the Company for

the financial year ended 31st March. 2018, topether with the Reports of the Board of
Dircctors and Auditors™ thereon

2. Appointment of Mr. Ashish Sachdeva DIN: 03069836). who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment

3 Appointment of M/s Satnam Associates. Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of
the Company for the period of Two Year.

4, Disclosure on Non-Promoter allottee of warrant on EGM 12.01.2018 to M/s LRSD
Securities Private Limited detail of their ultimate beneficiaries of Lalit Dua (HUF) PAN
AAAHL7279] holding 25% Shares each (1) Mr. Lalit Dua {(Karta) (2} Mrs. Ritu Dua,
Spouse of Karta (3) Ms. Shreya Dua Daughter of Karta, (4) Ms. Dakshata Dua Daughter of
Karta.

5. Regularisation of Additional Director, Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kakkar DIN 02434426 by
appeinting him as Exccutive Director of the Company for the period of 5 vears

6 Regularisation of Additicnal Director, Mr. Akhil Gupta DIN 07971889 by appointing him
as Executive Director of the Cotnpany for the period of 5 years

7 Regularisation of Additional Dircetor, Mr. Surendra Kumar Kaushik (DIN: 05286196) by
appointing him as independent Director of the Company the period of 5 years

Signed this ..o, day of....oee.e 200 Affix
revenue
ta
Note: Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder({s) siamp .

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered / Corporate Office of
the Company, not less than 48 hours hefore the commencemeant of the Meeting.
2. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the 27" Annual General Meeting.
3. Iis optional to put a (¥} in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the Far or
‘Against’ column blank against any or all Resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he / she thinks
appropriate. .
[
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
Registered Folio No. / DP 1D No. / Client ID No.

Name and address of the Member(s)

Joint Holder 1
Joint Holder 2
Number of Shares held:

| certify that | am a mermber / proxy for the member of the Company.

[ hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company at Priyanka Party Hali Adjoining Vandana International
School Behind Dwarka Court (Near Sector - 10 Metro Station ) New Dethi - 110075 on Saturday, the 29th Day of September 2018,
at 03:60 PM.

-—
Name of the member / proxy Signature of member / proxy

2 Name of the PrOXY i BIOCK JOHerS.........oovooi {in case the Proxy attends the meeting}
3.Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annyal Report to the Meeting,

PLEASE CUT HERE AND BRING THE ABOVE ATTENDANCE SLIP TO THE MEETING HALL

Electronic Voting Particulars

Electronic Voting Sequence No. User ID *Sequence Number

*Applicable to those members who have not updated their PAN with the Company / Depository Participant
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